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rØnherent

Dear Fellow Stockholder

This past year was difficult for the global economy including the IT industry Despite these

difficulties we were able to continue reporting positive cash flow from operations We were

also able to invest in re-positioning enherent into the Text Analytics market focusing on risk

management solutions which address fraud detection quality and safety and regulatory

compliance Text Analysis gathers insight from free form text This analysis offers

government and commercial organizations the opportunity to leverage vast amounts of

information contained in text including email documents call center notes forums blogs

surveys and others We feel the timing of our entry into the Text Analytics market is

appropriate since clients are looking for ways to increase their operational efficiencies while

lowering or containing their costs and mitigating risk Our Text Analytics solutions

accomplish these objectives

We continue to serve state and local governments Fortune 500 companies and middle market

enterprises However we continually seek new avenues for business expansion We are

committed to providing value driven solutions to our customers

The future always contains uncertainties but we have great confidence in our ability to

overcome obstacles with the continued support and loyalty of our customers stockholders

employees and valued advisors The management team of enherent is committed to enhancing

stockholder value by growing our core business

Sincerely

Pamela Fredette

Chairman CEO and President
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Cautionary Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

The following description of the business of enherent Corp enherent or Company contains certain

forward-looking statements as defined in Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 as amended and Section 21E

of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended that involve substantial risks and uncertainties These

forward-looking statements include information about possible or assumed future results of enherents

operations When used in this section and elsewhere in this Form 10-K the words anticipates would
believes expects estimate predict plan project will should intend and similar

expressions as they relate to enherent or its management are intended to identify such forvard-looking

statements Many possible events or factors could affect enherents future financial results and performance

causing enherents results or performance to differ materma ily from those expressed in enherents forward-

looking statements Investors are cautioned that such forward-looking statements involve risks and uncertainties

including without limitation the following the Companys plans strategies objectives expectations and

intentions are subject to change at any time at the discretion of the Company ii the Companys plans and

results of operations will be affected by the Companys ability to manage its growth and resources

iiicompetition in the industry and the impact of competition on pricing revenues and margins iv the

Companys ability to recruit and retain IT professionals and other risks and uncertainties indicated from

time to time in the Company sfihings with the Securities and Exchange Commission The Companys actual

results performance or achievements could differ materially from the results expressed in or implied by such

forward-looking statements Factors that could cause or contribute to such differences include without

limitation those discussed in Risk Factors below

PART

Item Business

GENERAL

Unless otherwise indicated or the context otherwise requires all references in this report to enherent the

Company us our or we are to enherent Corp References to Dynax are to Dynax Solutions Inc prior

to its merger with enherent on April 2005 which we refer to as the merger In the merger enherent was the

legal acquirer and Dynax was deemed the accounting acquirer The historical financial information presented for

periods prior to the merger is the financial information of Dynax

COMPANY OVERVIEW

enherent is an information technology services firm with primary focus of providing clients with

consultative resources including technology staffing and teams of technical consultants trained in the

delivery of solutions related to systems integration network and security advanced analytics enterprise content

management infrastructure solutions and application services Our consultative resource services allow clients to

use enherent consultants to address strategic technology resource demands Our solutions services offerings

combine project management technical and industry expertise and as required software product licenses and

computer equipment to deliver business value enherent core competencies are project management business

requirements definition technical application data architecture system design application code development

test strategy planning execution and deployment

Prior to the merger Dynax had business partnership relationship with IBM that supported its solutions

services business since 1985 In 1992 Dynax elevated its partnership with IBM to premier status in the

software license and computer hardware programs in order to support an expansion of its systems integration and

application business As result of the merger the Dynax preexisting relationship has been transferred to

enherent enherent leverages the IBM partnership to train and certify sales personnel in the IBM solutions selling

process and the functions features and benefits of IBM products In addition enherent leverages IBMs technical



training to train and certify its consultants in the IBM products that we use to support our application and system

integration solutions enherent purchases equipment products for resale from Arrow Electronics Inc an IBM

value added distributor IBM offers several incentive programs to its partners including purchase discounts

vendor incentive programs and sales rebates Incentive programs are at the discretion of IBM and usually require

achievement of specific sales volume or growth rate within specified time period to qualify for all or some

of the incentive programs

enherent management believes that enherent success depends in part on its ability to satisfy customer

needs through its flexible services delivery model and its commitment to delivering value in every engagement

enherent delivery model includes both providing project teams to be managed by the client as well as

solutions delivery model where teams of consultants are provided and managed by enherent For staffing

engagements enherent will generally recruit hourly employees and independent contractors with technical or

business knowledge skills that meet client requirements For solutions engagements enherent will deploy

project team led by an enherent project manager and staffed primarily with experienced full-time enherent

employees who have been trained in both the technologies needed to deliver the solution and enherents

proprietary project life cycle methodology enherent delivers solutions engagements in the systems integration

network and security and application services areas enherent partners with its clients on each solution

engagement to understand the clients business objectives and to align the objectives to technology solution

The technology solution includes services and also typically has involved software product licenses and

computer equipment enherent acts as the system integrator to bring all of the elements of technology solution

together to meet client requirements enherent delivers each solutions engagement under contractual agreement

which details the services project deliverables pricing timeframe for delivery and project completion criteria as

well as pricing for any software product licenses or computer equipment that will be delivered as part of the

solution

To ensure consistent delivery of quality solutions and services enherent leverages its project life cycle

methodology which has four major phases Define Solution Design Solution Develop Solution and Deploy

Solution The Define Solution phase is focused on establishing the project infrastructure and producing

requirements document that specifies the functionality to be deployed in the solution The Design Solution phase

is focused on the design of the database user interface business and technical components and security

infrastructure that comprise the solution The Develop Solution phase is focused on building the database

business and technical components conversion programs and documentation for the solution The Deploy

Solution phase is focused on the clients testing training and implementation of the solution Each project phase

has mandatory and optional pre-defined project activities To insure quality each phase of the methodology has

entrance and exit criteria that test the completeness of the deliverables produced in the phase

In December 2008 the Company obtained 49% minority interest in the newly formed business

Technology Resources LLC which was inactive and had no assets at December 31 2008

enherent client base is concentrated in Connecticut New York and New Jersey

COMPANY HISTORY

enherent Corp was first incorporated as PRT Corp of America New York corporation in 1989 and was

reincorporated in Delaware in 1996 as PRT Group Inc In July of 2000 PRT Group Inc changed its name to

enherent Corp enherents principal offices are located at 33 Wood Avenue South Suite 400 Iselin New Jersey

08830 and its telephone number is 732 603-3859

enherent completed the merger with Dynax on April 2005 The combined company has achieved cost

savings by reducing corporate overhead and other expenses



INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY CONSULTATiVE RESOURCE AND SOLUTIONS SERVICES

enherent delivers information technology services to its clients with consultative personnel and teams of

technical consultants trained in the delivery of solutions related to systems integration network and security and

application services enherent core competencies include project management business requirements

definition technical/application/data architecture system design application code development network

engineering quality assurance and testing strategy/planning/execution and deployment enherent uses its project

life cycle methodology to deploy solution services Technology platforms include legacy systems as well as

client server internet and network solutions enherent has industry expertise in insurance financial services

banking and capital markets retail distribution apparel health care and pharmaceutical enherent service

offerings include

Information Technology Consultative Resource and Staffing Servicesenherent provides experienced

information technology professionals to augment client resource demands Consultative and staffing

resources may be used to undertake role on long-term strategic project or fill short-term need for

technology skill set Areas of expertise include project management business analysis systems

architecture and design database architecture and design application code development network

engineering quality assurance and testing

Systems Integrationenherent makes concerted effort to understand each of its clients business

objectives and vision enherent conducts application data and technical assessments to determine if

there are gaps in the existing environment relative to the business vision enherent makes

recommendations to address the gaps by leveraging existing information technology assets and

deploying combination of application code development software product implementation and

computer equipment to integrate new capabilities into the environment to address the gaps Support

includes project management technical application and data architects and modelers application

developers and network engineers Some engagements include the implementation
of software product

licenses or computer equipment

Application Developmentenherent conducts planning design application code development testing

and deployment of enhancements to existing systems or new custom application development

Application development may include the evaluation and implementation of third party
business

application software Custom applications can be developed at the client site or off-site based on client

requirements Project management responsibility can be solely with enherent or shared with the client

Some engagements include the implementation of software product licenses or computer equipment

Network and Security Servicesenherent provides planning architecture design and engineering

services to support the build out optimization and security audits of the network infrastructure Some

engagements include the implementation of software product licenses or computer equipment

Advanced Analyticsenherent leverages text analytics technology to understand and process
free-

form text The analysis of text offers government and commercial organizations the opportunity to

leverage vast amounts of information contained in text including email documents call center notes

forums Blogs surveys
and others This advanced form of analytics combines text or unstructured data

with traditional forms of structured data to deliver actionable intelligence that is otherwise unavailable

without costly manual effort This insight enables our clients to understand the sentiment of customers

employees markets or citizens quickly find fraud or money laundering activity cost-effectively

comply with regulations and support litigation more effectively manage risk and brand reputation

better facilitate quality and safety reviews accelerate MA due diligence and better identify wasteful

spending

Target Markets

enherent focuses its marketing efforts for information technology services primarily on Fortune 1000

companies and those commercial and federal systems integrators with significant information technology and



application development service needs enherent also focuses its marketing efforts for solutions services

software license sales and computer equipment sales in the middle market Clients include industry leaders in

banking and capital markets insurance healthcare pharmaceutical consumer goods and other industries

enherents headquarters is based in Iselin New Jersey and enherent operates at client sites throughout the

northeastern United States enherent has no operations outside the United States

enherent derives significant portion of its revenues from large-scale engagements with limited number of

clients For the year ended December 31 2008 enherents five largest customers represented 65.7% of its total

revenues During that period the five largest customers and their percentages of enherents total revenues were

Mass Mutual24.8% IBM14.7% NBTY Inc.12.3% New York City Department of Homeless Services

8.4% Sikorsky Aircraft5.5% The loss of any one of these customers could have material adverse effect on

enherents future results of operations

Sales Marketing and Recruiting

enherent marketing strategy is to develop long-term business relationships with existing and new clients to

enable enherent to become preferred provider of information technology services enherent seeks to employ

cross-selling approach where appropriate to expand the number of services utilized by single client Other sales

and marketing methods include lead generation from its business partnership with IBM client referrals

networking and attending trade shows At December 31 2008 enherent employed sales business development

and recruiting personnel enherents website www.enherentcorp.com also serves as another marketing resource

The web site provides information to the information technology community about enherents services

Competition

Competition in the information technology consulting services market is intense with large number of

competitors enherents primary competitors include information technology consulting and systems integration

companies many of which have longer operating histories larger customer bases greater name recognition and

greater financial technical sales and marketing resources than enherent These competitors may be able to

undertake more extensive marketing efforts and adopt more aggressive pricing policies In the information

technology services market the principal competitive factors include core competencies quality of services

reference ability reputation and price enherent believes it competes primarily based on its in-depth technical

expertise timely delivery of products and services and quality of service enherent believes that its strength in the

information technology marketplace is its ability to attract develop motivate and retain skilled professionals

There can be no assurance that enherent will be able to compete successfully against its current or future

competitors or that competitive pressures will not materially and adversely affect its business financial condition

and results of operations

Employees

At December 31 2008 enherent had 119 employees and independent contractors 78 employees made up of

60 billable consultants sales marketing and recruiting personnel and 11 management/general administrative

personnel and 41 billable independent contractors None of enherents employees are covered by collective

bargaining agreement and enherent has never experienced work stoppage strike or labor dispute All

independent contractors act as consultants and they are not employees of enherent There can be no assurance

that the services of these independent contractors will continue to be available to enherent on terms acceptable to

enherent

Intellectual Property

enherent presently holds no patents or registered copyrights but enherent has several registered trademarks

including those for enherent the enherent logo Dynax and the Dynax logo In addition the Company



currently relies on unregistered copyrights trade secrets and unpatented proprietary know-how in the operation

of its business The Company employs various methods including nondisclosure agreements and other

contractual arrangements with employees and suppliers and technical protective measures to protect its

proprietary know-how There can be no assurance that other persons will not independently develop such

know-how or obtain access to it or independently develop technologies that are substantially equivalent or

superior to enherent technology enherent believes that its intellectual property rights including intellectual

property rights licensed from third parties do not infringe on the intellectual property rights of others

Research and Development

We believe that to compete favorably we must continue to invest in the research and development of our

services Our research and development efforts are focused on improving and enhancing our existing service

offerings as well as developing new proprietary products and services Accordingly the Company invested

$517000 in developing our entry into the Text Analytics Solutions Market during the year ended December 31

2008

Seasonality

enherent typically experiences higher payroll taxes in the first quarter of each year compared to other

quarters In addition service and equipment and software sales tend to be somewhat lower in the first month or

two of the year due to the time required for customers to ramp up information technology spending at the

beginning of their budget years

Item 1A Risk Factors

Our debt structure may affect our business and restrict its operating flexibility

On April 2005 following the consummation of the merger we entered into an Amended and Restated

Financing Agreement dated April 2005 among us and Ableco Finance LLC Ableco as lender and agent

the Amended Credit Agreement The Amended Credit Agreement with Ableco provided us with three-year

extension of the revolving credit facility previously maintained by Dynax and assumed by enherent in the

merger and an increase in the revolving credit facility from $4.0 million to $6.0 million The Amended Credit

Agreement also amended the terms of the Term Loan which was previously maintained by Dynax and was

assumed by enherent in the merger The credit facility is secured by first lien on all of our tangible and

intangible assets The Term Loan is secured by subordinated lien on all of our tangible and intangible assets

On September 2007 Ableco Finance LLC Ableco as lender and agent entered into Fourth

Amendment to Amended and Restated Financing Agreement the Fourth Amendment with us that further

amended the Amended Credit Agreement The Amendment decreased the revolving credit commitment

under the Amended Credit Agreement from $6000000 to $4500000 at any time outstanding and extended

the revolving loan maturity date under the Amended Credit Agreement from April 2008 to April 2009

On February 2009 we entered into Fifth Amendment to Amended and Restated Financing Agreement

the Fifth Amendment with Ableco that further amends the Amended Credit Agreement The Fifth

Amendment extends the revolving loan maturity date under the Amended Credit Agreement from April

2009 to April 2010 amends the amortization of Term Loan set forth in Section 2.03 of the Amended

Credit Agreement the aggregate amount outstanding of which was $1062500 at December 31 2008 to provide

that the first installment of $212500 became due upon the effective date of the Fifth Amendment twelve

consecutive monthly installments of $47000 will be due commencing on April 2009 and the last installment

of $286000 will be due on April 2010 and modifies financial covenants set forth in Section 6.03 of the

Amended Credit Agreement relating to the Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio and Consolidated EBITDA



Under US generally accepted accounting principles the loans under the revolving credit facility are

classified as current liabilities on the balance sheets because such loans contain both subjective acceleration

clauses and lock-box requirements The Amended Credit Agreement requires that we maintain certain financial

covenants

Borrowings under the revolving credit facility bear interest at 3% above the greater of the prime rate or

7.7 5% per annum payable monthly and are limited in general to 85% of eligible accounts receivable and

80% of the net amount of unbilled accounts receivable As of December 31 2008 the balance outstanding under

the revolving credit facility was $2006070 As of December 31 2008 the outstanding principal balance of the

Term Loan was $1062500

The holders of the enherent preferred stock iimnediately prior to the merger of enherent and Dynax the

Preferred Stockholders had redemption right exercisable at their option after January 16 2006 at value of

$1.00 per share With the consummation of the merger on April 2005 all of the shares of outstanding

preferred stock were converted in non-cash exchange for an aggregate of 8500000 shares of enherent common

stock and four subordinated secured notes in the aggregate principal amount of $1600500 According to the

terms of the three promissory notes that remain outstanding having an aggregate principal aniount of

$1412500 6% interest on the amount outstanding was payable in arrears These three notes had terms of five

years and no principal payments were owed in the first twenty-nine months ending September 2007

Thereafter semi-annual principal payments in the amount of $177000 were due for the following two years and

for the last year semi-annual principal payments in the amount of $353000 shall be due Effective August 10

2007 we agreed with the former Preferred Stockholders to amend and restate the promissory notes The three

amended and restated notes having an aggregate principal amount of $1412500 have maturity date of July

2011 with no principal payments due until January 2009 Thereafter semi-annual principal payments of

$177000 are due for the following two years and for the last year semi-annual principal payments of $353000

are due No payments have been made to the Preferred Stockholders since the inception of the notes Interest

continues to accrue at 6% and is payable at maturity At December 31 2008 the outstanding principal balance on

the three notes was $1412500

We entered into an Intercreditor and Subordination Agreement dated April 2005 among us certain

subsidiaries listed therein Ableco and the Preferred Stockholders to define the rights of and evidence the

priorities among those creditors The credit facility is secured by first lien on all of our tangible and intangible

assets The Term Loan and the notes issued to the Preferred Stockholders are secured on pan passu basis by

liens on all our tangible and intangible assets which liens are subordinated to the lien securing the credit facility

We have three subordinated notes relating to prior Dynax acquisitions bearing interest rates of between

prime and prime plus 1% At December 31 2008 the outstanding principal balance outstanding was $457000

The acquisition notes are subordinated to Ableco Any payments of principal or interest on the indebtedness will

be subordinated in accordance with the terms and conditions of the senior secured lender No payments were

made subsequent to March 31 2004 At December 31 2008 interest of $358113 has accrued on these notes

At December 31 2008 after giving effect to the Fifth Amendment entered into on February 2009 the

Companys long-term obligations with maturities of less than one year totaling $3.0 million consisted primarily

of Ablecos revolving asset based credit facility and Term Loan of $2.0 million and $635000 respectively

Our current debt structure could

limit cash flow available for general corporate purposes such as acquisitions due to the ongoing cash

flow requirements for debt service

limit our ability to obtain in the future or obtain on favorable terms additional debt financing for

working capital or acquisitions



limit our flexibility in reacting to competitive and other changes in our industry and economic

conditions generally

expose us to risk that substantial decrease in net operating cash flows due to economic

developments or adverse developments in the business could make it difficult to meet debt service

requirements

increase vulnerability to adverse economic and industry conditions and

expose us to risks inherent in interest rate fluctuations because of the variable interest rate of the credit

facility which could result in higher interest expense in the event of increases in interest rates

Our ability to repay or to refinance the indebtedness will depend primarily upon our future operating

performance which may be affected by general economic financial competitive regulatory business and other

factors beyond our control including those discussed herein In addition we cannot assure you that future

borrowings or equity financing will be available for the payment or refinancing of any indebtedness we may

have If we are unable to service our indebtedness or maintain covenant compliance whether in the ordinary

course of business or upon acceleration of such indebtedness we may be forced to pursue one or more alternative

strategies such as restructuring or refinancing our indebtedness selling assets reducing or delaying capital

expenditures or seeking additional equity capital There can be no assurances that any of these strategies could be

affected on satisfactory terms if at all

Our failure to comply with restrictive covenants under our revolving credit facilities and other debt

instruments could trigger prepayment obligations

Our failure to comply with the restrictive covenants under our revolving credit facilities and other debt

instruments could result in an event of default which if not cured or waived could result in us being required to

repay
these borrowings before their due date If we are forced to refinance these borrowings on less favorable

terms our results of operations and financial condition could be adversely affected by increased costs and rates

Prolonged weakness in the national economy or in the information technology services market could

adversely affect our business financial condition and results of operations

As widely reported global credit and financial markets have been experiencing extreme disruptions in

recent months including severely diminished liquidity and credit availability declines in consumer confidence

declines in economic growth increases in unemployment rates and uncertainty about economic stability There

can be no assurance that there will not be further deterioration in credit and financial markets and confidence in

economic conditions These economic uncertainties affect businesses such as ours in number of ways making

it difficult to accurately forecast and plan our future business activities The current tightening of credit in

financial markets may lead businesses to postpone spending which may cause our customers to cancel decrease

or delay their existing and future orders with us The continuing disruption in the credit markets has severely

restricted access to capital As result the ability to incur additional indebtedness to fund operations or refinance

maturing obligations as they become due is significantly constrained We are unable to predict the likely duration

and severity of the current disruptions in the credit and financial markets and adverse global economic

conditions and if the current uncertain economic conditions continue or further deteriorate our business and

results of operations could be materially and adversely affected

Furthermore the market for our services can change rapidly Our future growth is dependent upon the

information technology services we provide Demand and market acceptance for information technology services

are subject to high level of uncertainty Prolonged weakness in the information technology services industry

has caused in the past and may cause in the future business enterprises to delay or cancel information

technology projects reduce their overall budgets and/or reduce or cancel orders for our services This in turn

may lead to longer sales cycles delays in purchase decisions payment and collection and may also result in



price pressures causing us to realize lower revenues and operating margins If companies cancel or delay their

business and technology initiatives or choose to move these initiatives in-house our business financial condition

and results of operations could be materially and adversely affected

The loss of even one significant client or any significant reduction in the use of our services could have

material adverse effect on our business financial condition and results of operations

We derive significant portion of our revenues from large-scale engagements with limited number of

clients For the year ended December 31 2008 enherents five largest customers represented 65.7% of its total

revenues During that period the five largest customers and their percentages of enherent total revenues were

Mass Mutual24.8% IBM14.7% NBTY Inc.l 2.3% New York City Department of Homeless Services
8.4% and Sikorsky Aircraft5.5% The mix of significant clients and their respective percentages will vary for

different periods in time due to overall revenue levels new clients being added and changes in activity within

specific accounts The loss of anyone of these customers could have material adverse effect on our business

financial condition and results of operations

Our dependence on limited number of clients results in significant concentration of credit risk

Due to our dependence on limited number of clients we are subject to concentration of credit risk with

respect to accounts receivable In the case of insolvency by one of our significant clients accounts receivable

with respect to that client might not be collectible might not be fully collectible or might be collectible over

longer than normal terms each of which could adversely affect enherent financial position As of December 31
2008 our accounts receivable totaled $3.2 million Of this amount $1.7 million or 55.3% was due from our five

largest customers There can be no assurance that we will not suffer credit losses in the future

Most of our contracts are terminable by our clients with limited notice and without penalty payments and

early terminations could have material adverse effect on business operating results and financial condition

Most of our contracts are terminable by the client following limited notice and without early termination

payments or liquidated damages due from them In addition each stage of project often represents separate

contractual commitment at the end of which the client may elect to delay or not to proceed to the next stage of

the project While to date none of our clients have terminated material contract or materially reduced the

scope of large project we cannot assure you that one or more of our clients will not take such actions in the

future The delay cancellation or significant reduction in the scope of large project or number of projects could

have material adverse effect on our business operating results and financial condition

If we raise additional capital in the future our existing stockholders may suffer substantial dilution

We may need to raise additional capital in order to ensure sufficient supply of cash for continued

operations or to finance acquisitions We cannot be certain that additional financing will be available to us on

favorable terms when required or at all Changes in equity markets over the past five
years have adversely

affected the ability of companies to raise equity financing and have adversely affected the markets for financing

or companies with history of losses such as ours Additional financing may require us to take on more debt

including convertible debt or to issue additional shares of our common stock or preferred stock convertible into

common stock such that out existing stockholders may experience substantial dilution

Our failure to successfully identify acquire or integrate new businesses could have negative effect on

our operations our acquisitions could cause financial difficulties

As part of our business strategy we evaluate potential acquisitions in the ordinary course some of which

could be material There can be no assurance that we will be able to identify acquire or profitably manage
additional businesses or integrate successfully any acquired businesses without substantial expense delay or



other operational or functional problems Any acquisition would involve number of risks and present financial

managerial and operational challenges including

adverse effects on our reported operating results due to charges to earnings including impairment

charges associated with goodwill and other intangibles

diversion of management attention from running our businesses

integration of technology operations personnel and financial and other systems

internal controls over financial reporting of acquired companies may not initially be up to our

standards

increased expenses including compensation expenses resulting from newly hired employees

increased foreign operations often with unique issues relating to corporate culture compliance with

legal and regulatory requirements

assumption of known and unknown liabilities and exposure to litigation

increased levels of debt or dilution of existing shareholders

potential disputes with the sellers of acquired businesses technology services or products

over-valuation by us of acquired companies and

insufficient indemnification from the selling parties for legal liabilities incurred by the acquired

companies prior to the acquisitions

Our integration activities may place substantial demand on our management operational resources and

financial and internal control systems Customer dissatisfaction or performance problems with an acquired

business technology service or product could also have material adverse effect on our reputation and business

In addition any acquired business technology service or product could underperform relative to our

expectations

significant portion of our total assets consists of goodwill which is subject to periodic impairment

analysis and significant impairment determination in any future period could have an adverse effect on our

results of operations even without significant loss of revenue or increase in cash expenses attributable to

such period

We had goodwill totaling approximately $4.3 million prior to an impairment charge of $715000 leaving

balance of approximately $3.62 million at December 31 2008 resulting from the merger of Dynax and enherent

We evaluate this goodwill for impairment based on the fair value of the operating business units to which this

goodwill relates at least once year The Company generally determines the fair value of reporting unit using

combination of the income approach which is based on the present value of estimated future cash flows and the

market approach which compares the business units multiples of sales and EBITDA to those multiples of its

competitors Based upon indicators of impairment in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2008 which included

significant decrease in our market capitalization decline in recent operating results and decline in the

Companys business outlook primarily due to the current macroeconomic environment the Company performed

an interim impairment test as of December 31 2008 The Company completed the impairment analysis and

concluded that the fair value was below the carrying value of goodwill The Company recorded an impairment

charge of $715000 as of December 31 2008 This estimated fair value of our goodwill could change if we are

unable to achieve operating results at the levels that have been forecasted the market valuation of our business

decreases based on transactions involving similar companies or there is permanent negative change in the

market demand for the services offered by the Company These changes could result in further impairment of

the existing goodwill balance that could require material non-cash charge to our results of operations



There are risks associated with placing employees and independent contractors at clients businesses

which could result in costly and time-consuming litigation

We could be subject to liability if any of the following risks associated with placing employees or

independent contractors at clients businesses occur

liabilities for errors and omissions by our employees or independent contractors

injury to client employees

misappropriation of client property

possible claims of discrimination and harassment

misuse of client proprietary information or intellectual property

torts and other similarclaims or

other criminal activity

Our failure to meet clients expectations could result in losses or negative publicity and could subject us

to liability for the services we provide

Many of our engagements involve services that are critical to the operations of our clients businesses and

provide benefits that may be difficult to quantify Although we attempt to contractually limit our liability for

damages arising from errors mistakes omissions or negligent acts in rendering our services there can be no

assurance that our attempts to limit liability will be successful Additionally our attempts to contractually reduce

liability with many of our largest clients have met with limited success Our failure or inability to meet clients

expectations in the performance of our services could result in material adverse effect on the clients operations

and therefore could give rise to claims against us or result in negative publicity damaging our reputation which

could have material adverse effect on our business operating results and financial condition

The existence of vendor management organizations in the information technology market could have

material adverse effect on our business

Many companies contracting with information technology professional services finns have engaged vendor

management organizations or human capital management firms to assist them in managing and reducing their

information technology expenditures The increased involvement of these vendor management organizations in

the information technology industry has caused companies in the information technology industry to face

reduction in preferred vendor status an increase in competition reduction in revenues and an increase in fees

paid to vendor management organizations In our experience vendor management organization fees charged to

information technology professional services firms typically range from 2% to 5% of those firms billing rates

The increased involvement of vendor management organizations in the information technology industry could

have material adverse effect on our business

The Companys business is dependent upon general economic and other business conditions and other

general conditions

The demand for the Companys services is dependent upon general economic conditions The Companys

business tends to suffer during economic downturns such as the current recession The recent slowing of the

economy has already adversely affected the Companys revenue and operating profit and the continuation of the

current recession could further adversely affect the Companys revenues and operating profit While the

Company attempts to manage its costs including its personnel in relation to its business volume these efforts

may not be successful and the timing of these efforts and associated costs may adversely affect the Companys

results
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The weakened economy results in decreased demand for temporary and pennanent personnel When

economic activity slows down many of the Companys customers reduce their use of temporary employees

before undertaking layoffs of their regular employees resulting in decreased demand for contingent workers

number of customers have already announced reduction in workforce including contingent labor There is also

less need for contingent workers by all customers and potential customers who are less inclined to add to their

costs Since employees are also reluctant to risk changing employers there are fewer openings available and

therefore reduced activity in permanent placements as well In addition while in many fields there are ample

applicants for available positions variations in the rate of unemployment and higher wages sought by temporary

workers in certain technical fields which still experience labor shortages could affect the Companys ability to

meet its customers demands in these fields and adversely affect the Companys profit margins

The loss of our software or hardware partnerships
with IBM would have material adverse effect on our

business and results of operations

Our business relationship with IBM enables us to reduce our cost of sales and increase win rates through

leveraging our partners marketing efforts and strong vendor endorsements The loss of this relationship could

increase our sales and marketing costs lead to longer sales cycles harm our reputation and brand recognition

reduce our revenues and adversely affect our results of operations In particular significant number of our

customers for hardware software and certain services are identified through joint selling opportunities conducted

with IBM and through sales leads obtained from our relationship with IBM The loss of our relationship with or

significant reduction in the services we perform for IBM would have material adverse effect on our business

and results of operations

We depend on contracts with certain federal and state government agencies for meaningful portion of

our revenue and if the spending policies or budget priorities of these agencies change we could lose revenue

The market for certain of our services depends largely on federal and state legislative programs and the

budgetary capability to support programs including the continuance of existing programs These programs can

be modified or amended at any time by acts of federal and state governments Many government budgets have

been adversely impacted by the economic slowdown Changes in government initiatives or in the level of

government spending due to budgetary or deficit considerations may have significant impact on our future

financial performance

Acts of war or terrorism or related effects could adversely affect our business operating results and

financial condition

An act of war or terrorism could adversely affect our business operating results and financial condition For

example in the terrorist attacks of September 11 2001 we had customers whose offices were destroyed which

resulted in an interruption in projects
and related revenues Acts of war or terrorism also could result in loss of

key employees which could adversely affect our business operating results and financial condition

Additionally the related effects of an act of war or terrorism such as disruptions in air transportation and

enhanced security measures may interfere with our ability to provide services to our clients Finally an act of war

or terrorism may result in significant reduction in client spending or contribute to an economic downturn and

adversely affect our business operating results and financial condition

Our failure to continue to recruit and retain qualified information technology professionals could have

material adverse effect on our business

Our business is labor-intensive Our success depends upon our ability to attract develop motivate and retain

information technology professionals who include billable consultants and sales and recruiting professionals

Billable consultants are those employees or independent contractors who possess the necessary technical skills

and experience or can be trained to deliver our services Sales and recruiting professionals are those employees
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who possess the necessary skills experience and contacts to sell our services and recruit billable consultants We
are required to continually evaluate upgrade and supplement our billable consultants to keep pace with changing

client needs and technologies and to fill new positions The IT staffing industry in particular has high turnover

rates and is affected by the supply of and demand for qualified information technology professionals Qualified

infonnation technology professionals are in high demand worldwide and are likely to remain limited resource

for the foreseeable future Some of our major customers may also hire our billable consultants Direct hiring by

our customers adversely affects our turnover rate There can be no assurance that we will continue to have access

to qualified information technology professionals will be successful in retaining current or future information

technology professionals or that the cost of employing and subcontracting such information technology

professionals will not increase due to shortages Failure to attract or retain qualified information technology

professionals in sufficient numbers or an increase in the turnover rate among our billable consultants could have

material adverse effect on our business operating results and financial condition

We rely heavily on executive management and could be adversely affected if our executive management
team was not available

We are highly dependent on our senior executives including Pamela Fredette our Chairman CEO and

President since the completion of our merger with Dynax in April 2005 Prior to the merger she had served as

Dynaxs Chief Executive Officer and President and as director since joining Dynax in June 2002 On
December 2007 we entered into the First Amendment to Employment Agreement with Ms Fredette pursuant

to which the term of her employment was extended from March 31 2008 to March 31 20 10 subject thereafter to

automatic annual renewals absent notice of termination by us or Ms Fredette On December 2008 we entered

into the Second Amendment to the Employment Agreement with Ms Fredette
pursuant to which her base salary

was set at $300000 effective January 2009 The loss of the services of Ms Fredette could have material

adverse effect on our business results of operations cash flows or financial condition

We may lose executive officers and senior managers on whom we rely to generate business and execute

projects successfully

The ability of our executive officers and our senior managers to generate business and execute projects

successfully is important to our success While we have employment agreements with some of our executive

officers those agreements do not prevent them from terminating their employment with us The loss of an

executive officer or senior manager could impair our ability to secure and manage engagements which could

harm our business prospects financial condition and results of operations

Fluctuations in our quarterly revenues and operating results may lead to reduced prices for our stock

Our revenues and operating results are subject to significant variation from
quarter to quarter and we

anticipate that our revenues and operating results will be subject to significant variation depending on number

of factors including but not limited to the timing and number of client projects commenced or delayed or

terminated by the client and completed during the quarter ii the number of working days in quarter and

iiiemployee hiring attrition vacations and utilization rates Because high percentage of our expenses in

particular personnel and facilities costs will be relatively fixed variations in revenues may cause significant

variations in our operating results Additionally we will periodically incur cost increases due to both the hiring

of new employees and strategic investments in our infrastructure in anticipation of future projects and

opportunities for revenue growth Quarterly results are likely to fluctuate which may cause material adverse

effect on the market price of our common stock
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The use offixed-price engagements could have material adverse affect on our business financial

condition and results of operations

We principally bill for our services on time-and-materials basis We sometimes enter into fixed-price

billing engagements and may in the future enter into additional engagements billed on fixed-price basis While

our business operating results and financial condition have not been materially adversely affected by any failure

on our part to complete fixed-price engagement within budget in the past any such failure in the future could

expose us to risks associated with cost overruns which could have material adverse effect on our business

operating results and financial condition

The information technology services industry is highly competitive and we cannot assure you that we will

be able to compete successfully

We experience intense competition The market for information technology services is
very broad and these

services are offered by large number of private and public companies many of which are significantly larger

than and have greater financial technical and marketing resources than we do Competitors include Albano

Systems Inc Cognizant Technology Solutions Corporation Computer Task Group iGate Corp Prolifics and

TEK systems The trend toward offshore outsourcing internal expansion by foreign and domestic competitors

and continuing technological changes will also result in new and different competitors entering our markets

These competitors may include entrants from the communications software and data networking industries or

entrants in geographic locations with lower costs than those in which we operate Additionally in certain sectors

of our business particularly information technology services there are few barriers to entry and new competitors

do and are expected to enter the market As competitors enter the market to provide services similar to those

offered by us our ability to compete effectively will increasingly depend upon the quality and price of our

services We may not be able to compete effectively in which case competition could have material adverse

effect on our business operating results and financial condition

The information technology sector is rapidly changing and evolving and failure of enherent to compete

effectively could have material adverse effect on our business operating results and financial condition

The information technology services industry is characterized by rapid technological change shifting client

preferences and new product developments The introduction of competitive information technology

solutions embodying new technologies and the emergence of new industry standards may render our existing

information technology solutions skills base or underlying technologies obsolete or unmarketable As result

we will depend in large part upon our ability to develop new information technology solutions and capabilities

that address the increasingly sophisticated needs of our clients and keep pace with new competitive service and

product offerings and emerging industry standards to achieve broad market acceptance We cannot assure you

that we will be successful in developing and marketing new information technology solutions that respond to

technological changes shifting client requirements or evolving industry standards ii we will not experience

difficulties that could delay or prevent the successful development introduction and marketing of these new

information technology solutions or iiiour information technology solutions will adequately meet the

requirements of the marketplace and achieve market acceptance Any failure to respond to technological change

or evolving industry standards could have material adverse effect on our business operating results and

financial condition

We rely on our intellectual property rights which may not be properly protected or may infringe on the

intellectual property rights of others

In order to protect our proprietary rights in our various intellectual properties we currently rely on

copyrights trade secrets and unpatented proprietary know-how that may be duplicated by others We employ

various methods including nondisclosure agreements and other contractual arrangements with employees and

suppliers and technical protective measures to protect our proprietary know-how We cannot assure you that the
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steps taken by us to protect our proprietary rights will be adequate to deter misappropriation of our intellectual

property or that we will be able to deter unauthorized use and take appropriate steps to enforce our rights The

failure of such protective measures could have material adverse effect on our business operating results and

financial condition

There can be no assurance that other persons
will not independently develop such know-how or obtain

access to it or independently develop technologies that are substantially equivalent or superior to enherent

technology We presently hold no patents or registered copyrights but we have several registered trademarks

including those for enherent the enherent logo Dynax and the Dynax logo Although we believe that our

intellectual property rights including intellectual property rights licensed from third parties do not infringe on

the intellectual property rights of others we cannot assure you that such claim will not be asserted against

us in the future ii assertion of such claims will not result in litigation or that we would prevail in such litigation

or be able to obtain license for the use of any infringed intellectual property from third party on commercially

reasonable terms or iiiany of our software could be redesigned on an economical basis or at all or that any

such redesigned software would be competitive with the software of our competitors We expect that the risk of

infringement claims against us will increase if more of our competitors are able to successfully obtain patents for

software products and processes Any such claims regardless of their outcome could result in substantial costs

and diversion of resources and could have material adverse effect on our business operating results and

financial condition

We are subject to penny stock regulations which could reduce trading activity and liquidity in our

common stock

The Securities and Exchange Commission SEChas adopted rules that regulate broker-dealer practices in

connection with transactions in penny stocks Penny stocks generally are equity securities with price of less

than $5.00 other than securities registered on certain national securities exchanges provided that current price

and volume information with respect to transactions in such securities is provided by the exchange or system

Penny stock rules require broker-dealer prior to transaction in penny stock not otherwise exempt from those

rules to deliver standardized risk disclosure document prepared by the SEC which specifies information about

penny stocks and the nature and significance of risks of the penny stock market broker-dealer must also

provide the customer with among other things bid and offer quotations for the penny stock the compensation of

the broker-dealer and monthly account statements indicating the market value of each penny stock held in the

customers account In addition the penny stock rules require that prior to transaction in penny stock not

otherwise exempt from those rules the broker-dealer must make special written determination that the penny

stock is suitable investment for the purchaser and receive the purchasers written agreement to the transaction

These disclosure requirements may have the effect of reducing the trading activity in the secondary market for

stock that becomes subject to those penny stock rules Holders of securities subject to the penny stock rules may

have difficulty in selling those securities

Recent accounting pronouncements may impact our future financial position and results of operations

In September 2006 the FASB issued SFAS No 157 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS The objective

of SFAS No 157 is to increase consistency and comparability in fair value measurements and to expand

disclosures about fair value measurements SFAS No 157 defines fair value establishes framework for

measuring fair value in generally accepted accounting principles and expands disclosures about fair value

measurements SFAS No 157 applies under other accounting pronouncements that require or permit fair value

measurements and does not require any new fair value measurements The provisions of SFAS No 157 are

effective for fair value measurements made in fiscal
years beginning after November 15 2007 In February 2008

the FASB issued FASB Staff Position FSP 157-2 EFFECTIVE DATE OF FASB STATEMENT NO 157

FSP 157-2 which delayed the effective date of SFAS No 157 for all non-financial assets and liabilities

except those that are recognized or disclosed at fair value in the financial statements on recurring basis until

fiscal years beginning after November 15 2008 The Company has not yet determined the impact that the
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implementation of FSP 157-2 will have on its non-financial assets and liabilities which are not recognized at fair

value on recurring basis however the Company does not anticipate the adoption of this standard will have

material impact on its consolidated financial position results of operations or cash flows

In December 2007 the FASB issued SFAS No 141 revised 2007 Business Combinations SFAS
No 141R SFAS No 14 1R establishes principles and requirements for how an acquirer recognizes and

measures in its financial statements the identifiable assets acquired the liabilities assumed any noncontrolling

interest in the acquiree and the goodwill acquired SFAS No 141R also establishes disclosure requirements to

enable the evaluation of the nature and financial effects of the business combination SFAS No 14 1R is

effective as of the beginning of an entitys fiscal year that begins after December 15 2008 and will be adopted

by the Company in the first quarter of fiscal year 2009

In December 2007 the FASB issued SFAS No 160 NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS IN

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AN AMENDMENT OF ARB NO 51 SFAS No 160
which will change the accounting and reporting for minority interests which will be re-characterized as

non-controlling interests and classified as component of equity within the consolidated balance sheets SFAS

No 160 is effective as of the beginning of the first fiscal year beginning on or after December 15 2008 Earlier

adoption is prohibited The Company does not expect adoption of this standard will have material impact on its

current financial position operations or cash flows

Item lB Unresolved Staff Comments

None

Item Properties

enherents executive office is located at 33 Wood Avenue South Suite 400 Iselin New Jersey 08830

consists of approximately 1100 square feet in leased facility with term expiring on October 31 2009 In

addition enherent leases approximately 9900 square feet in facility in Windsor Connecticut for branch

office The lease on the Windsor branch office expires on August 31 2009 enherent also leases approximately

3925 square feet in facility in Syosset New York The lease on the Syosset branch office expires on

December 31 2010 At this time enherent does not anticipate requiring additional space

Item Legal Proceedings

In the normal course of business various claims are made against the Company At this time in the opinion

of management there are no pending claims the outcome of which are expected to result in material adverse

effect on the consolidated financial position or results of operations of the Company

Item Submission of Matters to Vote of Security Holders

None
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PART II

Item Market for Registrants Common Equity Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of

Equity Securities

The Common Stock of the Company is currently traded on the Over-the-Counter Bulletin Board

OTCBB under the symbol ENHT

Set forth below are the high and low sale price information as quoted on the OTCBB for the periods

indicated which information reflects inter-dealer prices without retail mark-up mark-down or commission and

may not necessarily represent actual transactions

Fiscal Period High Low

2007

First Quarter $0.10 $0.06

Second Quarter $0.17 $0.09

Third Quarter $0.15 $0.12

Fourth Quarter $0.13 $0.09

2008

First Quarter $0.13 $0.08

Second Quarter $0.11 $0.08

Third Quarter $0.10 $0.06

Fourth Quarter $0.07 $0.02

The approximate number of stockholders of record of the Common Stock as of March 27 2009 was 146

based on transfer agent reports the closing sale price of the Common Stock on the OTCBB on March 27 2009

was $0.03

The Company has not declared or paid any cash dividends on the Common Stock in recent years and does

not currently intend to do so The Company intends to retain any future earnings for reinvestment in its business

or to use such earnings to repay debt Our senior secured credit facility imposes restrictions on our ability to

declare dividends
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Item Selected Financial Data

Selected Consolidated Financial Data

In thousands except per share data

Years ended December 31

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008

Statement of Operations Data

Revenues

Service revenue 14377 23788 27487 27912 22490

Equipment and software revenue .. 4024 3532 2633 2774 4948

Total Revenues 18401 27320 30120 30686 27438

Cost of revenues

Costof services 10820 17966 21085 21311 17147

Cost of equipment and software ... 3331 2724 2026 2345 4089

Total cost of revenues 14151 20690 23111 23656 21236

Gross profit 4250 6630 7009 7030 6202

Operating expenses 4435 6713 6540 5957 6073

Income loss from operations 185 83 469 1073 129

Other expense 465 643 739 647 551

Income loss before income taxes 650 726 270 426 422
Provision for income taxes 26 17 28 14
Net income loss available to common

Stockholders 676 743 298 412 428

Basic and diluted net income loss per

share 0.03 0.02 0.01 0.01 0.01

Number of shares used in computing

basic net income loss per share 20905370 43175973 50361173 51345255 52375653

Number of shares used in computing

diluted net income loss per share 20905370 43175973 50361173 52061649 52375653

As of December 31

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008

Balance Sheet Data

Working capital deficiency 2352 2239 2736 2351 2681
Total assets 3853 10754 10038 10172 8434
Current portion of long-term obligations 3173 3778 3611 3402 3019

Long-term obligations less current

portions 2204 3818 3234 2956 1958

Total liabilities 7784 11665 11057 10418 8977

Mandatory redeemable preferred stock

Total stockholders deficiency 3931 911 1019 245 543

On April 2005 enherent completed merger transaction with Dynax an information technology services

firm in stock-for-stock exchange Immediately following the merger the former stockholders of Dynax owned

approximately 50% of the common stock of enherent on fully diluted basis In the merger enherent was the

legal acquirer and Dynax was deemed the accounting acquirer The historical financial data presented for periods

prior to the merger includes the financial information of Dynax The operations of the former enherent business

have been included in the financial data only from the date of merger Amounts for the three months ended

March 31 2005 included in the year ended December 31 2005 are those of Dynax
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Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operation

The following discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial

statements and related notes appearing elsewhere in this report This discussion containsforwa rd-looking

statements reflecting our current expectations and estimates and assumptions concerning events and financial

trendy that may affect our future operating results or financial position Actual results and the tuning of events

may differ materially from those contained in these forward-looking statements due to nunzber qffactors

including those discussed in the section entitled Risk Factors and cautionary Note Regarding Forward-

Looking Statements appearing elsewhere in this report

Overview

enherent is an information technology services firm with primary focus of providing clients with

consultative resources including technology staffing and teams of technical consultants trained in the

delivery of solutions related to systems integration network and security advanced analytics enterprise content

management infrastructure solutions and application services Our consultative resource services allow clients to

use enherent consultants to address strategic technology resource demands Our solutions services offerings

combine project management technical and industry expertise and as required software product licenses and

computer equipment to deliver business value enherents core competencies are project management business

requirements definition technical application data architecture system design application code development

test strategy planning execution and deployment

enherent is an IBM premier business partner enherent leverages the IBM partnership to train and certify

sales personnel in the IBM solutions selling process
and the functions features and benefits of IBM products In

addition enherent leverages IBMs technical training to train and certify its consultants in the IBM products that

we use to support our application and system integration solutions enherent purchases equipment products for

resale from Arrow Electronics an IBM value added distributor IBM offers several incentive programs to its

partners including purchase discounts vendor incentive programs and sales rebates Incentive programs are at the

discretion of IBM and usually require achievement of specific sales volume or growth rate within specified

time period to qualify for all or some of the incentive programs

enherent revenues are primarily derived from the sale of services that are delivered to clients either as

information technology consultative resources or as solution related to systems integration network and

security or application services and ii sales of computer equipment and software product licenses associated

with the delivery of solution engagements In addition enherent derives revenues from the permanent placement

of individuals at client accounts

enherent uses proprietary project life cycle methodology to deliver its solutions and services The delivery

methodology phases range
from inception to implementation of solution The phases include Define Solution

Design Solution Develop Solution and Deploy Solution In some cases enherent will couple the delivery of

solution services with the sale of software product licenses or computer equipment

majority of enherents consulting engagements are performed on time and material basis and tend to

present lower risk and have lower gross profit margins than enherents fixed price engagenents Time and

material engagements consist of providing technology consultants to clients on temporary basis The

consultants work is supervised and managed by the client Generally time and material contracts are less than

year in duration Fixed price engagements are generally for
year or less and represented less than 2% of

enherents revenue in 2008 and 2007

enherent utilizes standard billing guidelines for consulting services based on the type of service offered

Actual billing rates are established on project-by-project basis and may vary from the standard guidelines

enherent typically bills its clients for time and material services on weekly semi monthly and monthly basis as

specified by the contract with particular client Actual billing rates and payment schedules for fixed-price

18



engagements are made on case-by-case basis and are set forth in the contract with the client Consulting

services revenues generated under time and material engagements are recognized as the services are rendered

Consulting services revenues generated under fixed price engagements are recognized when the work is

performed based upon the completion of milestones enherent also derives revenues from computer equipment

and software license sales Revenues generated from computer equipment are recognized when the equipment is

received by the client Revenues generated from software license sales are recognized at the inception of the

software license term In addition enherent generates revenues from the permanent placement of individuals at

client accounts Revenues generated from the permanent placements of individuals at client accounts are

recognized when the candidate has satisfied any guarantee period which ranges from 30 to 90 days Revenues

from permanent placement of individuals were $46000 in 2008 and $74000 in 2007

enherent evaluates the strengths and weaknesses of its financial condition and operating performance by

monitoring and managing certain factors including gross profit and utilization of time and material and fixed

price engagements sales pipeline and sales backlog and earnings before interest depreciation taxes and

amortization enherent monitors operating performance to financial projections by analyzing and reviewing the

sales pipeline high probability near-term revenue opportunities and signed sales backlog on weekly basis On

weekly basis formal sales status update meeting is held to review high probability opportunities and

determine actions needed to close the opportunity Signed backlog is updated weekly and reports are produced

for management Signed backlog as percentage of remaining business required to achieve financial goals is

assessed to determine the financial stability of the business On weekly basis management reviews actual

results compared to the operation budget and if revenues are not aligned with expenses management takes

action to reduce expenses Management believes that the implementation of the controls relating to cost

containment has resulted in an improvement in enherent operating income

enherents largest operating cost is its direct labor cost As result enherents operating performance is

dependent upon its billable consultant gross profit margin and full time employee utilization enherent manages

gross profit on consultative resource and staffing engagements by monitoring the standard client bill rates and

aligning pay rates to the bill rate to maintain acceptable gross profit margins Since consultative resource and

staffing engagements are usually filled by recruiting hourly employees and outside contractors enherent is able

to consistently monitor and stabilize gross profit margins Hourly employees support variable staffing model

that allows enherent to staff demands and rare skill sets without permanently adding direct labor costs To insure

stability of profitability at the engagement level enherent manages gross profit margins for solutions

engagements by monitoring project budgets and deliverables Management receives reports on weekly and

monthly basis to assist in monitoring actual costs against the project budget to foresee potential cost overruns On

weekly basis management utilizes the quality assurance metrics from its project life cycle methodology to

review project deliverables particularly those associated with fixed price projects to insure that the percent

complete and the quality of the deliverables are acceptable to avoid rework or cost overruns

Results of Operations

The following table sets forth selected statement of operations data as percentage of revenues for the

periods indicated

Years ended December 31

2008 2007

Revenues 100.0% 100.0%

Cost of revenues 77.4 77.1

Gross profit 22.6 22.9

Operating expenses 22.1 19.4

Income loss from operations 0.5 3.5

Other income expense 2.0 2.2
Net Income loss 1.5 1.3
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Fiscal Year Ended December 31 2008 Compared to Fiscal Year Ended December 31 2007

Service Revenues

Service revenues decreased 19.4% to $22.5 million for the year ended December 31 2008 from

$27.9 million for the year ended December 31 2007 The decrease was attributable primarily to fewer billable

consultants deployed at customer accounts due to changes in client buying patterns
and concerns about

weakening economy In addition since January 2008 one of the Companys largest customers has not been using

the Company to fill its new staffing needs It is not clear when or if the customer will resume using the Company

to fill its new staffing needs The customer did not however terminate its existing agreement with the Company

and has not excluded the Company from receiving new consulting projects

Gross profit from service revenue decreased 19.1% to $5.3 million for the year ended December 31 2008

from $6.6 million for the year ended December 31 2007 The decrease in gross profit was attributable primarily

to lower revenue generated from the decrease in billable consultants deployed at certain key customers which

was partially offset by higher bill rates on certain time and material based client engagements

Gross profit as percentage of service revenues was approximately 23.8% for the year ended December 31

2008 and 23.7% for the year ended December 31 2007

Equipment and Software Revenues

Equipment and software revenues increased 78.3% to $4.9 million for the year ended December 31 2008

from $2.8 million for the year ended December 31 2007 The increase in equipment and software revenues was

attributable primarily to the Company closing several hardware transactions with one customer totaling $2.0

million during the third quarter of 2008

Gross profit from equipment and software revenues increased 100.1% to $859000 for the year ended

December 31 2008 from $428000 for the year ended December 31 2007 The increase in gross profit was

attributable primarily to the increase in hardware and software sales during the year ended December 31 2008

Gross profit as percentage of revenue depends on various factors outside of the Companys control These

factors may include vendor rebates incentive programs and the number of clients utilizing third-party leasing

arrangements to finance their purchase When client purchases equipment directly from the Company the

Company recognizes the gross revenue from the sale and its associated cost If client utilizes third party

leasing arrangement to finance its purchase the Company recognizes only the net commission revenue versus the

gross revenue

Gross profit as percentage of equipment and software revenues increased to 17.4% for the year
ended

December 31 2008 from 15.5% for the year
ended December 31 2007

Operating Expenses

Selling general and administrative expenses decreased 11.1% to $5.0 million for the year ended

December 31 2008 from $5.6 million for the year ended December 31 2007 The decrease was due primarily to

cost reductions made by the Company that resulted in relative decrease in sales general and administrative

payroll costs partially offset by increases in start up costs of approximately $517000 in developing our entry

into the Text Analytics Solutions Market during the year
ended December 31 2008

Due to worsening economic conditions the Company has performed an interim goodwill impairment test as

of December 31 2008 This resulted in the recognition of goodwill impairment charge of $715000 in 2008
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Interest Expense

Interest expense decreased 14.8% to $551000 for the year ended December 31 2008 from $647000 for the

year ended December 31 2007 The decrease was due primarily to the decrease in the Companys long term debt

obligations

Provision for Income Taxes

Provision for income taxes relates primarily to revenue-based and minimum state taxes and was positively

impacted from the availability of net operating loss carry forwards not previously recognized for financial

accounting purposes

The income tax provision for the
year ended December 31 2008 is stated net of the benefit of prior year

state tax refunds of approximately $10000 not previously recorded less state income taxes for the current year

which are not based on earnings Income tax expense for the year ended December 31 2007 was comprised of

state taxes which are not based on earnings No other income taxes were recorded on the earnings as result of

the utilization of the
carry

forwards All or portion of the remaining valuation allowance may be reduced in

future periods based on an assessment of earnings sufficient to fully utilize these potential tax benefits

Net Income Loss

Net income decreased by $841000 to loss of $428000 for the year ended December 31 2008 compared to

net income of $412000 for the year ended December 31 2007 The decrease in net income was primarily

attributable to start up costs of approximately $517000 in developing our entry into the Text Analytics Solutions

Market and non-cash goodwill impairment charge of $715000 for the year ended December 31 2008

Liquidity and Capital Resources

On April 2005 following the consummation of the enherent and Dynax merger the Company entered

into an Amended and Restated Financing Agreement the Amended Credit Agreement with Ableco Finance

LLC Ableco The Amended Credit Agreement provided the Company with three-year extension of the

revolving credit facility previously outstanding and an increase in the revolving credit facility from $4.0 million

to $6.0 million The Amended Credit Agreement also amended the terms of the Term Loan previously

outstanding The loans are collateralized by all the tangible and intangible assets of the Company Borrowings

under the revolving credit facility bear interest at 3% above the greater of the prime rate or 7.75% year

payable monthly and are limited in general to 85% of eligible accounts receivable and 80% of the net amount of

unbilled accounts receivable

On September 2007 the Company and Ableco as lender and agent entered into Fourth Amendment to

Amended and Restated Financing Agreement the Fourth Amendment that further amended the Amended

Credit Agreement The Fourth Amendment decreased the revolving credit commitment under the Amended

Credit Agreement from $6000000 to $4500000 at any time outstanding and extended the revolving loan

maturity date under the Financing Agreement from April 2008 to April 2009 The Company paid Ableco

fee of $60000 as consideration for entering into the Fourth Amendment

On February 2009 the Company and Ableco as lender and agent entered into Fifth Amendment to

Amended and Restated Financing Agreement the Fifth Amendment that further amends the Amended Credit

The Fifth Amendment extends the revolving loan maturity date under the Financing Agreement from April

2009 to April 2010 amends the amortization of Term Loan set forth in Section 2.03 of the Financing

Agreement the aggregate amount outstanding of which was $1062500 at December 31 2008 to provide that

the first installment of $212500 became due upon the effective date of the Fifth Amendment twelve consecutive
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monthly installments of $47000 will be due conunencing on April 2009 and the last installment of $286000

will be due on April 2010 and modified its financial covenants set forth in Section 6.03 of the Amended

Credit Agreement relating to the Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio and Consolidated EBITDA

Under US generally accepted accounting principles the loans under the revolving credit facility are

classified as current liabilities on the balance sheets because such loans contain both subjective acceleration

clauses and lock-box requirements The loan agreement requires that the Company maintain certain financial

covenants as set forth above

At December 31 2008 and 2007 the revolving credit facility balance outstanding was $2006000 and

$2825000 respectively

At December 31 2008 and 2007 the outstanding principal balance of the Term Loan was $1062500 and

$1487500 respectively

The holders of the enherent Preferred Stock the Preferred Stockholders had redemption right

exercisable at their option after January 16 2006 at value of $1.00 per share With the consummation of the

merger with Dynax on April 2005 all of the shares of outstanding Preferred Stock have been converted in

non-cash exchange for an aggregate of 8500000 shares of enherent common stock and four subordinated

secured notes in the aggregate principal amount of $1600500 According to the terms of three of the promissory

notes having an aggregate principal amount of $1412500 6% interest on the amount outstanding shall be

payable in arrears These three notes had an original term of five years and no principal payments were due in the

first twenty-nine months ended September 2007 Thereafter semi-annual principal payments of $177000 were

due for the following two years and for the last year
semi-annual principal payments of $353000 are due

Effective August 10 2007 the Company and the former Preferred Stockholders agreed to amend and restate the

promissory notes The three amended and restated notes having an aggregate principal amount of $1412500

have maturity date of July 2011 with no principal payments due until January 2009 Thereafter semi

annual principal payments of $177000 are due for the following two years and for the last
year

semi-annual

principal payments of $353000 are due Interest continues to accrue at 6% and is payable at maturity At

December 31 2008 and 2007 the outstanding principal balance on the three notes was $1412500

According to the terms of the fourth note in the principal amount of $188000 no interest was charged This

note had an original term of two years and quarterly principal payments of $23000 The Company made one

installment payment under the terms of this note in 2005 All past due principal bears interest at 12% until paid

The 12% past-due interest rate was increased by an additional 2% every six months that past-due amount

remained outstanding such that it would increase to 14% if past-due amount remained outstanding for six

months 16% if past-due amount remained outstanding for twelve months and 18% if past-due amount

remained outstanding for 18 months The past-due interest rate would at no time exceed 18% The Company has

accrued interest on all past-due amounts in accordance with the terms of the note Effective August 10 2007 the

Company and the former Preferred Stockholder agreed to amend and restate the promissory note The note had

outstanding principal and accrued interest of $189165 as of August 10 2007 and was amended and restated to

require twelve monthly payments of $15764 commencing August 15 2007 and final payment of $11484 on

August 15 2008 as consideration for agreeing to amend and restate the note The amended and restated note did

not bear interest following August 10 2007 but in the event of default thereunder interest would have accrued

based on the original schedule of past due interest rates At December 31 2007 the outstanding principal balance

on the fourth note was $122000 At December 31 2008 there was no outstanding principal balance outstanding

The Company entered into an Intercreditor and Subordination Agreement dated April 2005 among the

Company certain subsidiaries listed therein Ableco and the Preferred Stockholders to define the rights of and

evidence the priorities among those creditors The revolving credit facility is secured by first lien on all tangible

and intangible assets of the Company The Term Loan and the notes issued to the Preferred Stockholders are
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secured on pan passu basis by liens on all tangible and intangible assets of the Company which liens are

subordinated to the lien securing the revolving credit facility

The Company has three subordinated notes relating to prior Dynax acquisitions bearing interest rates of

between prime and prime plus 1% At December 31 2008 and 2007 the outstanding principal balance

outstanding was $456830 The acquisition notes are subordinated to Ableco Any payments of principal or

interest on the indebtedness will be subordinated in accordance with the terms and conditions of the senior

secured lender No payments were made subsequent to March 31 2004

At December 31 2008 after giving effect to the Fifth Amendment entered into on February 2009 the

Companys long-term obligations with maturities of less than one year totaling $3 million consisted primarily of

the Ablecos revolving asset based credit facility and Term of $2 million and $635000 respectively

Cash and cash equivalents were $1100000 at December 31 2008 compared to $1122000 at December 31

2007

In general the Company requires cash for working capital capital expenditures debt repayment and

interest Our working capital requirements increase when we experience strong incremental demand for our

services Our management assesses the future cash needs of our business by considering number of factors

including

our historical earnings and cash flow performance

our assessment of future working capital needs

our current and projected debt service expenses

planned capital expenditures and

our ability to borrow funds under the terms of our revolving credit facility

If the Company experiences deficiency in revenue earnings or operating cash flow with respect to its

fixed charges and operating expenses in the future it would need to fund the fixed charges and operating

expenses from borrowings from its revolving credit facility If borrowings from the Companys credit facility are

insufficient to fund its operations debt service and capital expenditures it may need to seek additional sources of

capital through means such as the issuance of equity or subordinated debt In addition it may not be able to

obtain additional debt or equity financing on terms acceptable to it or at all If the Company is not able to secure

additional capital it could be required to delay paying its account payables or forego business opportunities It is

also possible that the Company would no longer have the capital necessary to operate its business as going

concern

Cash flow provided by operations was $1.4 million for the year ended December 31 2008 compared to $1.2

million in the prior year The increase in cash flow provided by operations resulted from the net loss from

operations of $429000 being more than offset by non-cash charges from goodwill impairment of $715000 stock

based compensation of $131000 depreciation and amortization of $337000 and from customer collections

resulting in reduction in accounts receivable of $696000 Cash flow from operations in 2007 was generated

primarily by customer collections resulting in reduction in accounts receivable decrease in prepaid expenses

and an increase in certain current liabilities including accrued expenses

Cash used in investing activities for the year
ended December 31 2008 and 2007 related to the purchases of

computers software upgrades and office equipment totaling $65000 and $80000 respectively

Cash used in financing activities for the year ended December 31 2008 and 2007 consisting primarily
of net

repayments on the revolving credit facility and principal repayments of long-term debt and capital leases of

$1400000 and $610000 respectively
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The Companys accounts receivable were $3.1 million at December 31 2008 and $3.8 million at

December 31 2007 Billed days sales outstanding DSO net of allowance for doubtful accounts were 41 days

as of December 31 2008 and 46 days as of December 31 2007 The improvement in DSO was result of

decline in consulting revenues earned during the fourth quarter ended December 31 2008 and the result of faster

collections during the year ended December 31 2008 from certain customers

Primarily as result of the balance sheet classification of the outstanding revolving credit facility the

Companys working capital deficiency was $2.7 million and $2.4 million as of December 31 2008 and

December 31 2007 respectively

Inflation

Inflation did not have material impact on the Companys revenue or income from operations

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

There are no off-balance sheet transactions arrangements obligations including contingent obligations or

other relationships of the Company with unconsolidated entities or other persons that have or may have

material effect on financial condition changes in financial condition revenues or expenses results of operations

liquidity capital expenditures or capital resources of the Company

Other Arrangements

The Company does not provide post-retirement or post-employment benefits requiring charges under

Statements of Financial Accounting Standards No 106 and No 112

Critical Accounting Policies

In preparing the Companys consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles

generally accepted in the United States the Company uses certain estimates and assumptions that affect the

reported amounts and related disclosures and may vary from actual results The Company considers the

following accounting policies as those most important to the portrayal of its financial condition and results of

operations and those that require the most subjective judgment Although the Company believes that its estimates

and assumptions are reasonable actual results may differ and such differences could be significant to its

financial results

Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue when it is realized or realizable and earned The Company considers

revenue realized or realizable and earned when it has persuasive evidence of an arrangement the product has

been shipped or the services have been provided to the customer the sales price is fixed or determinable and

collectibility is reasonably assured The Company reduces revenue for estimated customer discounts In addition

to the aforementioned general policy the following are the specific revenue recognition policies for each major

category of revenue

Consulting Services

The terms of service contracts generally are for periods of less than one year Revenue from time and

material service contracts is recognized as the services are provided Revenue from services requiring the

delivery of unique products and/or services is recognized based on the completion of milestones Provisions for

losses are recognized during the period in which the loss first becomes apparent Revenue from service

maintenance is recognized over the contractual period or as the service is performed In some of the Companys
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services contracts the Company bills the customer prior to performing the service This situation gives rise to

deferred income In other services contracts the Company performs services prior to billing the customer This

situation gives rise to unbilled accounts receivable which are included in accounts receivable in the consolidated

balance sheet In these circumstances billing usually occurs shortly after the Company performs the services

Software

Revenue from the sale of one-time charge licensed software is recognized at the inception of the license

term

Equipment

Revenue from the sale of equipment is recognized when the product is shipped to the customer and there are

no unfulfilled Company obligations that affect the customers final acceptance of the equipment

Accounts ReceivableAllowance for Doubtful Accounts

The Companys accounts receivable balance is reported net of allowances for amounts not expected to be

collected from clients The Company regularly evaluates the collectibility of amounts owed to it based on the

ability of the debtor to make payment In the event the Companys evaluation indicates that customer will be

unable to satisfy its obligation the Company will record reserve to reflect this anticipated loss The Company

periodically reviews the requirements and adequacy of the reserve for doubtful accounts

Fixed Assets

Fixed assets are stated at cost and depreciation on furniture and equipment computer equipment and

software is calculated on the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets ranging from three

to seven years Leasehold improvements are amortized using the straight-line method over the shorter of the

lease term or estimated useful life of the asset The Company evaluates long-lived assets for impairment and

records charges in operating results when events and circumstances indicate that assets may be impaired The

impairment charge is determined based upon the amount by which the net book value of the asset exceeds its

estimated fair market value or undiscounted cash flow No impairment charges have been recognized in the two

years ended December 31 2007

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

In June 2001 Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No 142 SFAS 142 Goodwill and Other

Intangible Assets was issued Under SFAS 142 goodwill is no longer amortized after December 31 2001

However it must be evaluated for impairment at least annually and any losses due to impairment are recognized

in earnings SFAS 142 became effective for the Company on January 2002

In August 2001 Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No 144 SFAS 144 Accounting for the

Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets was issued Under SFAS 144 the Company is required to test

long-lived assets other than goodwill for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that

their carrying value may not be recoverable

Stock Based Compensation

The Company accounts for stock-based compensation under the provisions of SFAS 123R Share-Based

Payment SFAS 123R This statement requires the Company to measure the cost of employee services

received in exchange for an award of equity instruments based on the grant-date fair value of the award That

cost is recognized over the period in which the employee is required to provide service in exchange for the

award which is usually the vesting period
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Item Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

The following consolidated Financial Statements can be found on the pages
referenced below

Page

Index to Consolidated Financial Statements
F-i

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm F-2

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31 2008 and 2007 F-3

Consolidated Statements of Operations for the years ended December 31 2008 and 2007 F-4

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders Deficiency for the Years ended December 31 2008

and 2007
F5

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years
ended December 31 2008 and 2007 F-6

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
F-7

Item Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

There have been no disagreements with the Companys independent accountants involving accounting and

financial disclosure matters

Item 9A Controls and Procedures

The Company maintains disclosure controls and procedures that are designed to ensure that infonnation

required to be disclosed in its Exchange Act reports is recorded processed suimnarized and reported within the

time periods specified in the SECs rules and forms and that such information is accumulated and communicated

to the Companys management including the Companys Chief Executive Officer and Principal Financial Officer

as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure Such controls and procedures by their

nature can provide only reasonable assurance regarding managements control objectives

The Company carried out an evaluation under the supervision and with the participation of its management

including its Chief Executive Officer and Principal Financial Officer on the effectiveness of the design and

operation of its disclosure controls and procedures pursuant to Exchange Act Rules 3a- 15 and Sd- 15 as of

December 31 2008 Based upon that evaluation the Companys Chief Executive Officer and Principal Financial

Officer concluded that the Companys disclosure controls and procedures are effective in timely alerting them to

information relating to the Company including its consolidated subsidiaries required to be included in the

Companys Exchange Act reports

While the Company believes that its existing disclosure controls and procedures have been effective to

accomplish their objectives the Company intends to continue to examine refine and formulize its disclosure

controls and procedures and to monitor ongoing developments in this area

There was no change in the Companys internal control over financial reporting as defined in Exchange Act

Rules 3a- 15f and Sd- 15f during the quarter ended December 31 2008 that has materially affected or is

reasonably likely to materially affect the Companys internal control over financial reporting

Managements Annual Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial

reporting Internal control over financial reporting is process designed by or under the supervision of the chief

executive officer and principal financial officer and effected by our board of directors management and other

personnel to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of

financial statements for external purposes
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles
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Our evaluation of internal control over financial reporting includes using the COSO framework an

integrated framework for the evaluation of internal controls issued by the Committee of Sponsoring

Organizations of the Treadway Commissionto identify the risks and control objectives related to the evaluation

of our control environment

Based on our evaluation under the frameworks described above our management has concluded that our

internal control over financial reporting was effective as of December 31 2008

This annual report does not include an attestation report of the companys registered public accounting firm

regarding internal control over financial reporting Managements report was not subject to attestation

requirements by the companys registered public accounting firm pursuant to temporary rules of the Securities

and Exchange Commission that permit the company to provide only managements report in this annual report

Item 9B Other Information

None
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PART III

Item 10 Directors Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

Directors of the Company

This information will be included in our definitive proxy statement for the 2009 Annual Meeting of

Stockholders the 2009 Proxy Statement under the heading Election of Directors and is incorporated

herein by reference

Executive Officers of the Company

This information will be included in the 2009 Proxy Statement under the heading Executive Officers

and is incorporated herein by reference

Information Regarding Audit Committee and Nominating Governance Committee

This information will be included in the 2009 Proxy Statement under the heading Meetings and

Certain Committees of the Board of Directors and is incorporated herein by reference

Section 16a Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance

This information will be included in the 2009 Proxy Statement under the heading Section 16a

Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance and is incorporated herein by reference

Code of Ethics

The Company has adopted code of ethics titled Code of Ethics and Business Conduct for Officers

Directors and Employees of enherent Corp the Code of Ethics The Code of Ethics applies to all

officers directors and employees of the Company The Code of Ethics is intended to comply with the

provisions of Section 406 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and the rules promulgated thereunder by the

SEC The Code of Ethics was designed to deter wrongdoing and to promote honest and ethical conduct

including the ethical handling of actual or apparent conflicts of interest between personal and professional

relationships ii full fair accurate timely and understandable disclosure in reports and documents that

registrant files with or submits to the SEC and in other public communications made by the Company

iii compliance with applicable governmental laws rules and regulations iv the prompt internal reporting

of violations of the code of ethics to an appropriate person or persons identified in the code of ethics and

accountability to the code of ethics The Company is required to disclose in current report on Form 8-K

the nature of any amendment to the code of ethics or the nature of any waiver including any implicit

waiver from provision of this code of ethics that applies to its principal executive officer principal

financial officer principal accounting officer or controller or persons performing similar functions which

persons currently consist of Pamela Fredette and Arunava De The Company has filed its Code of Ethics

with the SEC see Exhibit 14.1

Item 11 Executive Compensation

The information called for by Item 11 with respect to management remuneration and transactions is

incorporated herein by reference to the material under the caption Executive Compensation in the 2009 Proxy

Statement

Item 12 Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholders

Matters

The information called for by Item 12 with respect to security ownership of certain beneficial owners and

management is incorporated herein by reference to the material under the captions Ownership of enherent Corp

Common Stock and Equity Compensation Plan Information in the 2009 Proxy Statement
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Item 13 Certain Relationships and Related Transactions and Director Independence

The information called for by Item 13 with respect to transactions between the Company and certain related

entities is incorporated herein by reference to the material under the captions Director Compensation and

Executive Compensation in the 2009 Proxy Statement The information called for by Item 13 with respect to

director independence is incorporated herein by reference to the material under the caption Election of

Directors and Meetings and Certain Committees of the Board of Directors in the 2009 Proxy Statement

Item 14 Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information called for by Item 14 with respect to principal accountant fees and services is incorporated

herein by reference to the material under the caption Independent Public Accountants in the 2009 Proxy

Statement
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PART IV

Item 15 Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

Financial Statements

Index to Consolidated Financial Statements of enherent Corp and Subsidiaries is on page

Financial Statement Schedules

All other schedules for which provision is made in the applicable accounting regulation of the SEC are

not required under the related instructions or are inapplicable and therefore have been omitted

Exhibits

See Index to Exhibits
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 the registrant

has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized

enherent Corp

March 30 2009 By Is PAMELA FREDETIE

Pamela Fredette

Chairman Chief Executive Officer and President

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 this report has been signed below by

the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities indicated on the dates indicated

Date March 30 2009 By Is PAMELA FREDETTE

Pamela Fredette

Chairman Chief Executive Officer President and Director

Principal Executive Officer

Date March 30 2009 By Is ARUNAVA DE
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VP of Finance Principal Financial and Accounting Officer
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Douglas Mellinger

Director
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Thomas Minerva

Vice Chairman and Director
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Director
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders

enherent Corp

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of enherent Corp and Subsidiaries the

Company as of December 31 2008 and December 31 2007 and the related consolidated statements of

operations changes in stockholders deficiency and cash flows for each of the two years in the period ended

December 31 2008 These financial statements are the responsibility of the Companys management Our

responsibility is to express an opinion on them based upon our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board

United States of America Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable

assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatements An audit includes

examining on test basis evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements An audit

also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management as well as

evaluating the overall financial statement presentation We believe our audits provide reasonable basis for our

opinion

In our opinion the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly in all material respects

the consolidated financial position of the Company as of December 31 2008 and December 31 2007 and the

results of its operations and cash flows for each of the two years
in the period ended December 31 2008 in

conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America

Is Cornick Garber Sandier LLP

Cornick Garber Sandier LLP

New York New York

March 30 2009
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ENHERENT CORP AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

AS OF DECEMBER 31 2008 AND 2007

December 31 December 31
2008 2007

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents
1100224 1121694

Accounts receivable net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $105492 and

$55492 at December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively 3098862 3844726

Prepaid expenses and other current assets 139563 143981

Total current assets 4338649 5110401

Furniture equipment and improvements net 163926 179794

Goodwill 3619278 4334278

Other intangible assets net 125000 225000

Deferred financing costs net 146678 280986

Other assets
40370 41833

TOTAL 8433901 10172292

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities

Revolving credit facility
2006070 2824691

Current portion of long-term debt 1013317 577311

Accounts payable and accrued expenses
3259926 2884320

Deferred revenue
169715 169647

Accrued compensation and benefits 570113 1005359

Total current liabilities 7019141 7461328

Long-term liabilities

Long-term debt net of current portion above 1957605 2956189

Total liabilities 8976746 10417517

Commitments and contingencies

STOCKHOLDERS DEFICIENCY

Preferred stock $.001 par value authorized10000000 shares issued-none

Common stock $.001 par value authorizedi01000000 shares issued and

outstanding52375653 shares in 2008 and 2007 52376 52376

Additional paid-in capital
27747974 27616974

Accumulated deficit 28343195 27914575

Total stockholders deficiency 542845 245225

TOTAL 8433901 10172292

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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ENHERENT CORP AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31 2008 AND 2007

2008 2007

Revenues

Service revenue $22490266 $27911795

Equipment and software revenue 4.948050 2774503

Total revenues 27438316 30686298

Cost of revenues

Cost of services 17147437 21311281
Cost of equipment and software 4089228 2345443

Cost of revenues 21236665 23656724

Gross profit 6201651 7029574

Operating expenses

Selling general and administrative 5020725 5649088
Depreciation and amortization expense 337103 307664
Impairment of goodwill 715000

Total operating expenses 6072828 5956752

Operating income 128823 1072822
Interest expense 551263 647037

Loss Income before income taxes 422440 425785
Provision for income taxes 6180 13710

NET LOSS INCOME 428620 412075

Basic and diluted net loss income per share 0.01 0.01

Basic and diluted net loss income per share 0.01 0.01

Number of shares used in computing basic net income per share 52375653 51345255

Number of shares used in computing diluted net income per share 52375653 52061649

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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ENHERENT CORP AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS DEFICIENCY

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31 2008 AND 2007

Balance at January 2007

Exercise of common stock options

Restricted common stock issued for

debt extension

Restricted common stock issued for

consulting services

Stock based compensation

Net income for the year ended

December 31 2007
____________________________________

Balance at December 31 2007

Stock based compensation

Net loss for the year ended

December 31 2008
______________________________________

Balance at December 31 2008
____________________________________

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements

Total

Stockholder

Deficiency

$1019400
4600

Preferred Stock Common Stock
Additional

Number of Number of Paid in Accumulated

Shares Amount Shares Amount Capital Deficit

50361451 $50361 $27256889 $28326650

40000 40 4560

1474202 1475

500000 500 48500

108500

412075

52375653 52376 27616974 27914575
131000

428620

52375653 $52376 $27747974 $28343195

198525 200000

49000

108500

412075

245225
131000

428620

542845
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ENHERENT CORP AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31 2008 AND 2007

NET DECREASE INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash flows from operating activities

Net loss income

Adjustments to reconcile net loss income to net cash provided by operating

activities

Bad debts

Impairment of goodwill

Depreciation

Amortization of deferred financing costs

Amortization of intangibles

Stock based compensation

Changes in assets and liabilities

Accounts receivable

Prepaid expenses and other current assets

Other assets

Accounts payable and accrued expenses

Deferred revenue

Net cash provided by operating activities

_________
Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of furniture fixtures and equipment

Net cash used in investing activities

__________

Cash flows from financing activities

Repayment of notes payable others

Repayment of compensation note payable

Net repayments under revolving loan

Principal repayments on Ableco Term Loan

Principal payments on capital lease obligations

Payments of deferred financing costs

Proceeds from exercise of stock options

Net cash used in financing activities

NET DECREASE INCREASE 1N CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTSJANUARY _______
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTSDECEMBER 31

_______
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Cash paid during year for

Interest

Income taxes

Noncash investing and financing transactions

Equipment acquired under capital leases

Restricted stock issued for debt extension

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements

2008 2007

428620 412075

50000

715000

102795

134308

100000

131000

5000

119549

88128

100000

157500

695864 470608

4418 9127
1463 10457

59640 151115
68 1628

1446656 1180533

64653 80024

64653 80024

122046 92016

150133

818621 27937

425000 212500

37806 49183

83302
4600

1403473 610471

21470 490038

1121694 631656

$1100224 $1121694

423098 513351

12000 10249

22274 44813

200000
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ENHERENT CORP AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS AT AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31 2008 AND 2007

NOTE 1SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Description of Business

enherent Corp the Company is an information technology services firm with primary focus of

providing clients with consultative resources including technology staffing and teams of technical

consultants trained in the delivery of solutions related to systems integration network and security and

application services The consultative resource services allow clients to use the Company consultants to address

strategic technology resource demands The Companys solutions services offerings combine project

management technical and industry expertise and as required software product licenses and computer

equipment to deliver business value

In December 2008 the Company obtained 49% minority interest in newly formed business

Technology Resources LLC which was inactive and had no assets at December 31 2008

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting

principles generally accepted in the United States of America U.S GAAP The consolidated financial

statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly-owned and majority controlled subsidiaries after

elimination of all significant intercompany transactions and balances

Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue when it is realized or realizable and earned The Company considers

revenue realized or realizable and earned when it has persuasive evidence of an arrangement the product has

been shipped or the services have been provided to the customer the sales price is fixed or determinable and

collectibility is reasonably assured The Company reduces revenue for estimated customer discounts In addition

to the aforementioned general policy the following are the specific revenue recognition policies for each major

category
of revenue

Consulting Services

The terms of service contracts generally are for periods of less than one year Revenue from time and

material service contracts is recognized as the services are provided Revenue from services requiring the

delivery of unique products and/or services is recognized based on the completion of milestones Provisions for

losses are recognized during the period in which the loss first becomes apparent Revenue from service

maintenance is recognized over the contractual period or as the service is performed In some of the Companys

services contracts the Company bills the customer prior to performing the service This situation gives rise to

deferred income In other services contracts the Company performs services prior to billing the customer This

situation gives rise to unbilled accounts receivable which are included in accounts receivable in the consolidated

balance sheet In these circumstances billing usually occurs shortly after the Company performs
the services

Equipment

Revenue from the sale of hardware is recognized when the product is shipped to the customer and there are

no unfulfilled company obligations that affect the customers final acceptance
of the equipment
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ENHERENT CORP AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSContinued
AS AT AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31 2908 AND 2007

Software

Revenue from the sale of one-time charge licensed software is recognized at the inception of the license

term

Per Share Amounts

Basic net earnings per share is based on the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the

period while fully-diluted net earnings per share is based on the weighted average number of shares of common
stock and potentially dilutive securities assumed to be outstanding during the period using the treasury stock

method Potentially dilutive securities consist of options to purchase common stock Basic and diluted net loss

per share is computed based on the weighted average number of shares of common stock outstanding during the

period

The Company uses the treasury stock method to calculate the impact of outstanding stock options and

warrants Stock options and warrants for which the exercise price exceeds the average market price over the

period have an anti-dilutive effect on earnings per common share and accordingly are excluded from the

calculation For the year ended December 31 2008 diluted net loss per share does not include potential common
shares derived from stock options because as result of the Company incurring losses their effect would have

been anti-dilutive For the year ended December 31 2007 the average number of options outstanding with the

exercise price greater than the average market price of the common shares totaled 5854080 which were

excluded from the computation of diluted income
per share

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company classifies all highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less as cash

equivalents

Fixed Assets

Fixed assets are stated at cost and depreciation of furniture and equipment is calculated on the straight-line

method over the estimated useful lives of the assets ranging from three to ten years Leasehold improvements are

amortized using the straight-line method over the shorter of the lease term or estimated useful life of the asset

The Company evaluates long-lived assets for impairment and records charges in operating results when events

and circumstances indicate that assets may be impaired The impairment charge is determined based upon the

amount by which the net book value of the asset exceeds its estimated fair market value No impairment charges
have been recorded in any of the periods presented herein

Goodwill and Other Intangibles

In June 2001 Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No 142 SFAS 142 Goodwill and Other

Intangible Assets was issued Under SFAS 142 goodwill is no longer amortized after December 31 2001
However it must be evaluated for impairment at least annually and any losses due to impairment are recognized
in earnings SFAS 142 became effective for the Company on January 2002 As of December 31 2008 the

company recorded an impairment charge of $715000 See Note

In August 2001 Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No 144 SFAS 144 Accounting for the

Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets was issued Under SFAS 144 the Company is required to test
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ENHERENT CORP AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSContinued
AS AT AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31 2008 AND 2007

long-lived assets other than goodwill for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that

their carrying value may not be recoverable

Deferred Financing Costs

Deferred financing costs represent fees paid in connection with obtaining bank and other long-term

financing These fees are amortized over the term of the related financing

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying values of cash cash equivalents and accounts receivable and accounts payable and accrued

expenses approximate their fair value due to the short-term maturities of the instruments The carrying values of

the revolving credit facility long-term debt loans payable and capital leases approximate fair value as it is

believed that the interest rates are approximately the same as those that would be available to the Company in

similar borrowing arrangements

Stock Based Compensation

The Company accounts for stock-based compensation under the provisions of SFAS 23R Share-Based

Payment SFAS 123R This statement requires the Company to measure the cost of employee services

received in exchange for an award of equity instruments based on the grant-date fair value of the award That

cost is recognized over the period in which the employee is required to provide service in exchange for the

award which is usually the vesting period

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards

No 109 SFAS No 109 Accounting for Income Taxes Under this method deferred taxes when required

are provided based on the difference between the financial reporting and income tax bases of assets and liabilities

and net operating losses at the statutory rates enacted for future periods The Company has policy of

establishing valuation allowance when it is more likely than not that the Company will not realize the benefits

of its deferred tax assets in the future

In June 2006 the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No 48 Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes

an interpretation of FASB Statement No 109 FIN 48 FIN 48 prescribes recognition threshold and

measurement attribute for the financial statement recognition and measurement of tax position taken or

expected to be taken in tax return FiN 48 also provides guidance on derecognition classification treatment of

interest and penalties and disclosure of such positions Effective January 2007 the Company adopted the

provisions of FIN 48 as required As result of implementing FIN 48 there has been no adjustment to the

Companys financial statements and the adoption of FIN 48 did not have material effect on the Companys

consolidated financial statements for the years ended December 31 2008 and 2007

Advertising

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred Advertising expense including marketing expense for the years

ended December 31 2008 and 2007 was approximately $38000 and $33000 respectively
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ENHERENT CORP AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSContinued
AS AT AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31 2008 AND 2007

Research and Development

The Company accounts for research and development costs in accordance with the Financial Accounting

Standards Boards Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No SFAS Accounting for Research

and Development Costs Under SFAS all research and development costs must be charged to expense as

incurred The Company incurred costs of $517000 in developing its entry into the Text Analytics Solutions

Market during the year ended December 31 2008 The Company did not incur any material research and

development expenditures during the year ended December 31 2007

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in the

United States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that are reported in the consolidated

financial statements and accompanying disclosures Although these estimates are based on managements best

knowledge of current events and actions that the Company may undertake in the future actual results may be

different from the estimates

Concentration of Credit Risk and Revenues

The Companys financial instruments that are exposed to concentrations of credit risk primarily consist of

cash and cash equivalents and trade accounts receivable The Company deposits its cash with high quality credit

institutions At times such balances may be in excess of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation limit

For the year ended December 31 2008 three customers accounted for approximately 51.8% of revenues

and 40% of the total outstanding accounts receivable the largest of which represented approximately 25% and

14% of the respective totals For the year ended December 31 2007 two customers accounted for approximately

40% of revenues and 41% of the total outstanding accounts receivable the largest of which represented

approximately 30% and 27% of the respective totals

NOTE 2RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In September 2006 the FASB issued SFAS No 157 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS The objective

of SFAS No 157 is to increase consistency and comparability in fair value measurements and to expand

disclosures about fair value measurements SFAS No 157 defines fair value establishes framework for

measuring fair value in generally accepted accounting principles and expands disclosures about fair value

measurements SFAS No 157 applies under other accounting pronouncements that require or permit fair value

measurements and does not require any new fair value measurements The provisions of SFAS No 157 are

effective for fair value measurements made in fiscal
years beginning after November 15 2007 In February 2008

the FASB issued FASB Staff Position FSP 157-2 EFFECTIVE DATE OF FASB STATEMENT NO 157

FSP 157-2 which delayed the effective date of SFAS No 157 for all non-financial assets and liabilities

except those that are recognized or disclosed at fair value in the financial statements on recurring basis until

fiscal years beginning after November 15 2008 The Company has not yet determined the impact that the

implementation of FSP 157-2 will have on its non-financial assets and liabilities which are not recognized on

recurring basis however the Company does not anticipate the adoption of this standard will have material

impact on its consolidated financial position results of operations or cash flows
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ENHERENT CORP AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSContinued
AS AT AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31 2008 AND 2007

In December 2007 the FASB issued SFAS No 141R BUSINESS COMBINATIONS SFAS
No 141R which establishes principles and requirements for how an acquirer recognizes and measures in its

financial statements the identifiable assets acquired the liabilities assumed and any non-controlling interest in an

acquiree including the recognition and measurement of goodwill acquired in business combination SFAS

No 141R is effective for business combinations occurring after the beginning of the first fiscal year beginning

on or after December 15 2008 Earlier adoption is prohibited

In December 2007 the FASB issued SFAS No 160 NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS IN

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AN AMENDMENT OF ARB NO 51 SFAS No 160
which will change the accounting and reporting for minority interests which will be re-characterized as

non-controlling interests and classified as component of equity within the consolidated balance sheets SFAS

No 160 is effective as of the beginning of the first fiscal year beginning on or after December 15 2008 Earlier

adoption is prohibited The Company does not expect adoption of this standard will have material impact on its

current financial position operations or cash flows

NOTE 3FURNITURE EQUIPMENT AND IMPROVEMENTS

Furniture equipment and improvements consist of the following

December 31

2008 2007 Years

Furniture fixtures and equipment 2365588 2278660

Leasehold improvements 329736 329736 10

Total 2695324 2608396

Less accumulated depreciation and amortization 2531398 2428602

Balance 163926 179794

Balance includes net assets under capital leases of approximately $58000 and $78000 in 2008 and 2007

respectively

Depreciation expense was $102795 and $119549 for the years ended December 31 2008 and 2007

respectively

NOTE 4GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

On April 2005 enherent Corp and Dynax Solutions Inc entered into business combination As result

of this merger the Company recorded goodwill of $4.3 million Goodwill acquired in the merger is not amortized

and is not deductible for tax purposes Based upon indicators of impairment in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2008

which included significant decrease in market capitalization of the Company decline in recent operating

results and decline in the Companys business outlook primarily due to the current macroeconomic

environment the Company performed an interim impairment test as of December 31 2008 The Company

completed the impairment analysis and concluded that the fair value was below the carrying value of goodwill

The Company recorded an impairment charge of $715000 as of December 31 2008 The Company had recorded

no impairment charges prior to December 31 2008

The Company determined the fair value of its goodwill using the income approach which is based on the

present value of estimated future cash flows and the market approach which compares the business units

multiples of sales and EBITDA to those multiples its competitors
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ENHERENT CORP AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FiNANCIAL STATEMENTSContinued
AS AT AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31 2008 AND 2007

NOTE 5REVOLVING CREDIT FACILITY

On April 2005 following the consummation of the enherent and Dynax merger the Company entered

into an Amended and Restated Financing Agreement with Ableco Finance LLC Ableco The Amended

Credit Agreement provided the Company with three-year extension of the revolving credit facility previously

outstanding and an increase in the revolving credit facility from $4.0 million to $6.0 million The Amended

Credit Agreement also amended the terms of Term Loan and Term Loan previously outstanding The loans

are collateralized by first lien on all the tangible and intangible assets of the Company Borrowings under the

revolving credit facility bear interest at 3% above the greater of the prime rate or 7.75% year payable

monthly and are limited in general to 85% of eligible accounts receivable and 80% of the net amount of unbilled

accounts receivable

On September 2007 the Company and Ableco as lender and agent entered into Fourth Amendment to

Amended and Restated Financing Agreement the Fourth Amendment that further amended the Amended

Credit Agreement The Fourth Amendment decreased the revolving credit commitment under the Amended

Credit Agreement from $6000000 to $4500000 at any time outstanding and extended the revolving loan

maturity date under the Amended Credit Agreement from April 2008 to April 2009 The Company paid

Ableco fee of $60000 as consideration for entering into the Fourth Amendment

On February 2009 the Company and Ableco as lender and agent entered into Fifth Amendment to

Amended and Restated Financing Agreement the Fifth Amendment that further amends the Amended Credit

Agreement The Fifth Amendment extends the revolving loan maturity date under the Amended Credit

Agreement from April 2009 to April 2010 amends the amortization of Term Loan set forth in

Section 2.03 of the Amended Credit Agreement the aggregate amount outstanding of which is $1062500 to

provide that the first installment of $212500 became due upon the effective date of the Amendment twelve

consecutive monthly installments of $47000 will be due commencing on April 2009 and the last installment

of $286000 will be due on April 2010 and modifies financial covenants set forth in Section 6.03 of the

Amended Credit Agreement relating to the Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio and Consolidated EBITDA The

balance sheet classification of the Term Loan at December 31 2008 gives effect to the terms of the Fifth

Amendment

Under US generally accepted accounting principles the loans under the revolving credit facility are

classified as current liabilities on the balance sheets because such loans contain both subjective acceleration

clauses and lock-box requirements The Amended Credit Agreement also requires that the Company maintain

certain financial covenants

At December 31 2008 and 2007 the revolving credit facility balance outstanding was $2006070 and

$2824691 respectively

NOTE 6LONG TERM DEBT

In connection with the enherent and Dynax merger the Company entered into an Intercreditor and

Subordination Agreement dated April 2005 among the Company certain subsidiaries listed therein Ableco

and the prior enherent Preferred Stockholders to define the rights of and evidence the priorities among those

creditors The Term Loan and the notes issued to the prior enherent Preferred Stockholders are secured on

pan passu basis by liens on all tangible and intangible assets of the Company which liens are subordinated to the

lien securing the credit facility The Intercreditor and Subordination Agreement imposes restrictions on our

ability to declare dividends
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ENHERENT CORP AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FII4ANCIAL STATEMENTSContinued
AS AT AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31 2008 AND 2007

The total amount and terms of the long term debt including capital lease obligations are summarized as

follows

December 31

2008 2007

Note Payable due to three prior enherent Preferred Stockholders According to the terms of

three of the promissory notes having an aggregate principal amount of $1412500 6%
interest on the amount outstanding is payable in arrears Effective August 10 2007 the

Company and the former Preferred Stockholders agreed to amend and restate the

promissory notes The three amended and restated notes having an aggregate principal

amount of $1412500 have maturity date of July 2011 Beginning January 2009

semi-annual principal payments of $177000 are due for the following two years and for

the last year semi-annual principal payments of $353000 are due Interest continues to

accrue at 6% and is payable at maturity 1412500 $1412500

Note Payable due to prior enherent Preferred Stockholder According to the terms of the

note of $188000 no interest was initially charged This note had an original term of two

years and quarterly principal payments of $23000 The Company made one installment

payment under the terms of this note in 2005 All past due principal bears interest at 12%

until paid The 12% past-due interest rate was increased by an additional 2% every six

months that past-due amount remains outstanding such that it would increase to 14% if

past-due amount remained outstanding for six months 16% if past-due amount remained

outstanding for twelve months and 18% if past-due amount remained outstanding for 18

months The past-due interest rate shall at no time exceed 18% The Company has accrued

interest on all past-due amounts in accordance with the terms of the note

Effective August 10 2007 the Company and the former Preferred Stockholder agreed to

amend and restate the promissory note The note which had outstanding principal and

accrued interest of $189165 as of August 10 2007 was amended and restated to require

twelve monthly payments of $15764 commencing August 15 2007 and final payment of

$11484 on August 15 2008 as consideration for agreeing to amend and restate the note

The amended and restated note did not bear interest following August 10 2007 but in the

event of default thereunder the interest would have accrued based on the original

schedule of past due interest rates 122046

Ableco Term Loan is payable with an installment of $212500 on February 2009 and

twelve consecutive monthly installments of $47000 will be due commencing on April

2009 and with the last installment of $286000 will be due on April 2010 plus interest at

3% annually to April 2010 1062500 1487500

Note Payable due for prior business acquisition The note is subordinated to the Ableco

loans Payments of principal or interest on this indebtedness may not be made without the

consent of Ableco No payments have been made since March 31 2004 However for

financial statement presentation purposes the balance sheet classification of these loans has

been estimated based upon the subordination provision and their minimum payment terms

without regard to payments in arrears The monthly payment terms are equal to $5000

or ii $7500 if EB1TDA as defined in the note is at least $75000 or iii $10000 if

EBITDA is $100000 or greater plus interest at prime plus 1% on unpaid principal and

accrued interest 112623 112623

Notes Payable due for prior business acquisition The notes are subordinated to the Ableco

loans Payments of principal or interest on this indebtedness may not be made without the

consent of Ableco No payments have been made since March 31 2004 However for

financial statement presentation purposes the balance sheet classification of these loans has

been estimated based upon the subordination provision and their minimum payment terms

without regard to payments in arrears Due in monthly payments equal to $10000 or

ii $15000 if EBITDA as defined in the note is at least $75000 or iii $20000 if EBITDA
is $100000 or greater plus interest at prime on unpaid principal and accrued interest 344207 344207

Various capital lease obligations related to the acquisition of computer and office equipment

in the Consolidated Balance Sheet Capital leases are stated net of interest at nominal

amounts 39092 54624

Total debt 2970922 3533500

Less current portion of long-term debt 1013317 577311

Non-current portion of long-term debt 1957605 $2956189
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ENHERENT CORP AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSContinued
AS AT AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31 2008 AND 2007

As result of the Company paying the Term Loan semi-annual installment of $212500 on April 2008

the Company was unable to meet the Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio covenant in the Amended Credit Agreement

for the three-month period ended June 30 2008 Ableco agreed to waive the Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio

covenant for the period ended June 30 2008 and for the remainder of 2008 In consideration of this waiver the

Company agreed to pay Ableco fee of $10000 and to make the next semi-annual installment payment on Term

Loan by August 2008 The Company made this installment payment which would have otherwise been due

on October 2008 by using existing liquidity including the current availability under the revolving credit

facility

As result of the Fifth Amendment as described above payments on Term Loan were revised to provide

that the first installment of $212500 was on February 2009 with twelve consecutive monthly installments of

$47000 payable on April 2009 and the last installment of $286000 payable on April 2010

At December 31 2008 aggregate maturities of long-term debt including capital leases are as follows

Year ending December 31

2009 $1013317

2010 792901

2011 707881

2012 300000

2013 156823

Total $2970922

NOTE 7CAPITAL STOCK

The Company has authorized 111000000 shares of capital stock consisting ofi 100000000 shares of

voting common stock par value $.001 per share the Voting common Stock ii 1000000 shares of

non-voting common stock par value $.001 per share the Non-voting Common Stock and together with the

Voting Common Stock the Common Stock and iii 10000000 shares of preferred stock par value $.001 per

share the Preferred Stock

In July 2007 the Company issued 40000 shares of common stock for options exercised at an average price

of $0.11 per share

On August 13 2007 the Company and three former preferred stockholders executed fee letters effective as

of August 10 2007 pursuant to which the Company agreed to issue to the former preferred stockholders an

aggregate of 1474202 shares valued at $200000 of the Companys voting common stock as consideration for

agreeing to the amendment and restatement of three promissory notes

During the year ended December 31 2007 the Company issued an aggregate of 500000 shares of common

stock having an aggregate fair market value of $49000 to consultants in exchange for services rendered which

approximated the fair value of the shares issued during the period services were rendered and completed

As of December 31 2008 and 2007 the Company had 52375653 shares of voting common stock issued

and outstanding
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ENHERENT CORP AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSContinued
AS AT AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31 2008 AND 2007

NOTE 8STOCK BASED COMPENSATION

Stock Options

Under the Companys 1996 Option Plan as amended 8242617 common shares have been reserved for

issuance

The Companys 2005 Stock Incentive Plan the 2005 Plan originally provided for the issuance of up to

4000000 shares of Company stock as incentive stock options nonqualified stock options or restricted stock No

awards may be granted under the 2005 Plan on date that is more than ten years after its June 2005 effective

date The Compensation Committee of the Board may grant stock-based incentives to officers employees

directors and consultants providing services to the Company Non-employee directors may only receive awards

of nonqualified stock options pursuant to formula stated in the 2005 Plan In addition any shares attributable

to awards that are forfeited cancelled exchanged surrendered or otherwise terminate or expire without

distribution of shares will again be available for awards under the 2005 Plan

On May 24 2007 the Companys stockholders approved an amendment and restatement of the Companys

2005 Stock Incentive Plan the Plan The purpose of the amendment and restatement of the Plan was to

increase the number of options granted to our non-employee directors under the Plan Previously at the time

non-employee director was first elected to the Board the director was awarded an option to purchase 30000

shares of our stock In addition on the date of the Annual Meeting each continuing non-employee director was

previously awarded an option to purchase 30000 shares of stock unless the director already received an option

on that date as newly elected director As result of the amendment and restatement of the Plan commencing

with the grants
made in connection with the 2007 Annual Meeting each continuing non-employee director will

be awarded an option to purchase 50000 shares of stock unless the director already received an option on that

date as newly elected director In addition new directors will be awarded an option to purchase 50000 shares

of our stock at the time non-employee director is first elected to the Board

On May 22 2008 the Companys stockholders approved an amendment and restatement of the Companys

2005 Stock Incentive Plan the Plan The purpose of the amendment and restatement of the Plan was to

increase the number of shares of common stock Shares that will be reserved for issuance under the Plan to

9000000 Before the amendment and restatement of the Plan the number of Shares reserved under the Plan was

4000000 and 238681 Shares were available for issuance under the Plan as of April 2008

On April 2008 the Company issued to employees ten-year options to purchase total of 975000 shares

of the Companys common stock at an exercise price of $0.076 per share The Company also issued to

consultant two five year options for 500000 shares each for an aggregate
of 1000000 shares at an exercise

price of $0.076 per share Additionally in connection with joint marketing agreement the Company issued

two-year option to purchase 500000 shares of the Companys common stock at an exercise price of $0.09 per

share On May 22 2008 the Company issued to Board Members ten-year options to purchase total of 200000

shares of the of the Companys common stock at an exercise price of $0.08 per share In July 2008 the Company

cancelled one of the five-year options for 500000 shares issued to consultant and the two-year option for

500000 shares issued in connection with the joint marketing agreement
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ENHERENT CORP AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSContinued
AS AT AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31 2008 AND 2007

summary of the status of the Companys outstanding stock options as of December 31 2008 and the

changes during the two years then ended are as follows

Weighted

Average
Shares Price per Share

OutstandingJanuary 2007 8411173 0.22

2007 transactions

Exercised 40000 0.11

Forfeited 868054 0.26

Granted 697129 0.12

OutstandingDecember 31 2007 8200248 0.21

2008 transactions

Exercised

Cancelled 1000000 0.08

Forfeited 1123967 0.47

Granted 2875000 0.08

OutstandingDecember 31 2008 8951281 0.15

The following table summarizes information about the stock options outstanding as at December 31 2008

Weighted

Average

Remaining
Number Number Contractual

Exercise Prices Outstanding Exercisable Life years

$0.03 $0.09 2882495 2397238 6.19

$0.10 $0.29 5872376 5596663 4.85

$0.66 $0.78 23000 23000 2.04

$1.13$1.82 82460 82460 1.36

$2.19$2.75 70250 70250 0.58

$3.63$5.00 20700 20700 0.13

Total 8951281 8190311

The weighted-average fair value of stock options granted during the years ended December 31 2008 and

2007 and the weighted-average significant assumptions used to determine those fair values using Black

Scholes option pricing model are as follows

December 31

2008 2007

Risk-free interest rate 4.68% 5.0%

Dividend yield 0% 0%

Volatility factor of the expected market price of Common Stock 102-112% 47%

Average life years 10 10
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSContinued
AS AT AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31 2008 AND 2007

The Black-Scholes option pricing model was developed for use in estimating the fair value of traded options

that have no vesting restrictions and are fully transferable In addition option valuation models require the input

of highly subjective assumptions including the expected stock price volatility Because the Companys employee

stock options have characteristics significantly different from those of traded options and because changes in the

subjective input assumptions can materially affect the fair value estimate in the Companys opinion the existing

models do not necessarily provide reliable single measure of the fair value of the Companys employee stock

options

At December 31 2008 the aggregate intrinsic value of options outstanding was $0 Aggregate intrinsic

value represents the difference between the Companys closing stock price on the last trading day of the fiscal

period which was $0.03 as of December 31 2008 and the exercise price multiplied by the number of options

outstanding At December 31 2008 total unrecognized stock-based compensation expense related to non-vested

stock options was $83490 For the years ended December 31 2008 and 2007 the Company stock-based

compensation expense was $131000 and $157500 respectively

NOTE 9INCOME TAXES

The Company has federal and state net operating loss carry forwards portion of which begin to expire in

2018 However as result of the Companys merger with Dynax on April 2005 the amount of prior years net

operating loss carry forwards available to be utilized in reduction of future taxable income is approximately

$660000 annually pursuant to the change in control provisions of Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code plus

any losses incurred after the merger Accordingly the remaining federal net operating loss carry forward

available to the Company at December 31 2008 was approximately $12.4 million Due to the uncertainty of its

ability to utilize the deferred tax assets relating to the loss carry forwards and other temporary differences

between tax and financial reporting purposes the Company has recorded valuation allowance equal to the

related deferred tax assets

In June 2006 the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No 48 Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes-an

interpretation of FASB Statement No 109 FIN 48 FIN 48 prescribes recognition threshold and

measurement attribute for the financial statement recognition and measurement of tax position taken or

expected to be taken in tax return FIN 48 also provides guidance on derecognition classification treatment of

interest and penalties and disclosure of such positions Effective January 2007 the Company adopted the

provisions of F1N 48 as required As result of implementing FIN 48 there has been no adjustment to the

Companys financial statements and the adoption of FIN 48 did not have material effect on the Companys

consolidated financial statements for the years ended December 31 2008 and 2007

The income tax provision for the year ended December 31 2008 is stated net of the benefit of prior year

state tax reftind of approximately $10000 not previously recorded less state income taxes for the current year

which are not based on earnings No other income taxes were recorded on the earnings as result of the

utilization of the carry forwards All or portion of the remaining valuation allowance may be reduced in future

periods based on an assessment of earnings sufficient to fully utilize these potential tax benefits
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ENHERENT CORP AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSContinued
AS AT AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31 2008 AND 2007

At December 31 2008 the significant components of the deferred tax assets are summarized below

2008 2007

Net operating loss carry forwards 4970000 4650000

Stock options and other 160000 20000

Amortization of intangibles and depreciation of fixed assets 690000 800000

Total deferred tax assets 5820000 5470000

Less valuation allowance 5820000 5470000

Balance

NOTE 10RETIREMENT PLANS

The Company maintains 401k plan the Plan covering all its eligible employees The Plan is currently

funded by voluntary salary deductions by plan participants and is limited to the maximum amount that can be

deducted for federal income tax purposes Commencing in 2006 the Company elected to make 401k matching

contributions discretionary but no matching contributions were made by the Company for the years ended

December 31 2008 and 2007

NOTE 11SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Company operates in one industry segment providing information technology solutions to its clients

and is managed as one line of business The Companys management makes financial decisions and allocates

resources based on the information it receives from its internal management system The Companys

management relies on the internal management system to provide sales cost and asset information for the

business as whole

During the years ended December 31 2008 and 2007 the Company had only domestic operations

NOTE 12COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Operating Leases

The Company leases office space and operating facilities under non-cancelable operating leases expiring at

various dates through December 2010 The office leases contain real estate tax and operating escalations

Rent expense is included in general and administrative expenses in the consolidated statement of operations

The rentals under these leases are recorded for financial accounting purposes on straight-line basis Accrued

future rentals give effect to both future scheduled increases and certain concessions at lease inception

The Company also leases office equipment under non-cancelable operating leases expiring at various times

through March 2011
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ENHERENT CORP AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FiNANCIAL STATEMENTSContinued
AS AT AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31 2008 AND 2007

Future minimum lease payments under operating leases are as follows

Year ending December 31

2009 $349217

2010 111292

2011 1243

Total minimum lease payments $461752

For the years ended December 31 2008 and 2007 rent expense was approximately $478000 and $489000

respectively

Employment Agreements

On December 2007 the Company entered into the First Amendment to Employment Agreement by and

between the Company and Pamela Fredette President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company pursuant

to which the term of Ms Fredettes employment was extended from March 31 2008 to March 31 2010 subject

thereafter to automatic annual renewals absent notice of termination by the Company or Ms Fredette

As of December 31 2008 the Company had an employment agreement with another executive officer with

one-year term that renews automatically for additional one-year terms if neither the Company nor the executive

give notice of non-renewal

The employment agreements create certain liabilities on the part of the Company for severance payments in

the event that the agreements are terminated or not renewed for specified reasons including following change

of control The severance obligations range
from three months of salary to two years of salary plus bonus

depending on the executive and the circumstances of termination The employment agreements include certain

confidentiality non-competition and assignment of invention provisions for the benefit of the Company

Litigation

In the normal course of business various claims are made against the Company At this time in the opinion

of management there are no pending claims the outcome of which are expected to result in material adverse

effect on the consolidated financial position or results of operations of the Company

NOTE 13RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the years ended December 31 2008 and 2007 the Company charged to operations $80000 for

consulting services performed by the Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors of the Company
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Exhibit 31.1

SECTION 302 CERTIFICATION

Pamela Fredette Chairman Chief Executive Officer and President of enherent Corp certify that

have reviewed this report on Form 10-K of enherent Corp

Based on my knowledge this report
does not contain any untrue statement of material fact or omit to

state material fact necessary to make the statements made in light of the circumstances under which such

statements were made not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report

Based on my knowledge the financial statements and other financial information included in this report

fairly present in all material respects
the financial condition results of operations and cash flows of the registrant

as of and for the periods presented in this report

The registrants other certifying officers and are responsible for establishing and maintaining

disclosure controls and procedures as defined in Exchange Act Rules 3a- 15e and 15d- 15e for the registrant

and have

designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and procedures

to be designed under our supervision to ensure that material information relating to the registrant including

its consolidated subsidiaries is made known to us by others within those entities particularly during the

period in which this report is being prepared

designed such internal control over financial reporting or caused such internal control over financial

reporting to be designed under our supervision to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of

financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes
in accordance with

generally accepted accounting principles

evaluated the effectiveness of the registrants disclosure controls and procedures and presented in

this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of

the period covered by this report based on such evaluation and

disclosed in this report any change in the registrants internal control over financial reporting that

occurred during the registrants most recent fiscal quarter the registrants fourth fiscal quarter in the case of

an annual report that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect the registrants

internal control over financial reporting and

The registrants other certifying officers and have disclosed based on our most recent evaluation of

internal control over financial reporting to the registrants auditors and the audit committee of registrants board

of directors or persons performing the equivalent functions

all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control

over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrants ability to record

process summarize and report financial information and

any fraud whether or not material that involves management or other employees who have

significant role in the registrants internal control over financial reporting

Is PAMELA FREDETf

Pamela Fredette

Chairman Chief Executive Officer and President

March 30 2009



Exhibit 31.2

SECTION 302 CERTIFICATION

Arunava De VP of Finance of enherent Corp certify that

have reviewed this report on Form 10-K of enherent Corp

Based on my knowledge this report does not contain any untrue statement of material fact or omit to

state material fact necessary to make the statements made in light of the circumstances under which such

statements were made not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report

Based on my knowledge the financial statements and other financial information included in this report

fairly present in all material respects the financial condition results of operations and cash flows of the registrant

as of and for the periods presented in this report

The registrants other certifying officers and are responsible for establishing and maintaining

disclosure controls and procedures as defined in Exchange Act Rules 3a- 15e and 5d- 15e for the registrant

and have

designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and procedures

to be designed under our supervision to ensure that material information relating to the registrant including

its consolidated subsidiaries is made known to us by others within those entities particularly during the

period in which this report is being prepared

designed such internal control over financial reporting or caused such internal control over financial

reporting to be designed under our supervision to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of

financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with

generally accepted accounting principles

evaluated the effectiveness of the registrants disclosure controls and procedures and presented in

this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of

the period covered by this report based on such evaluation and

disclosed in this report any change in the registrants internal control over financial reporting that

occurred during the registrants most recent fiscal quarter the registrants fourth fiscal quarter in the case of

an annual report that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect the registrants

internal control over financial reporting

The registrants other certifying officers and have disclosed based on our most recent evaluation of

internal control over financial reporting to the registrants auditors and the audit committee of registrants board

of directors or persons performing the equivalent functions

all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control

over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrants ability to record

process summarize and report financial information and

any fraud whether or not material that involves management or other employees who have

significant role in the registrants internal control over financial reporting

Is ARUNAVA DE

Arunava De

Principal Financial Officer

March 30 2009



Exhibit 32.1

SECTION 906 CERTIFICATION

In connection with the Annual Report of enherent Corp the Company on Form 10-K for the period

ended December 31 2008 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof the

Report Pamela Fredette Chairman Chief Executive Officer and President of the Company certify

pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 1350 adopted as pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 that

The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13a or 15d of the Securities

Exchange Act of 1934 and

The information contained in the Report fairly presents in all material respects the financial

condition and result of operations of the Company

1st PAMELA FREDETFE

Pamela Fredette

Chairman Chief Executive Officer and President

March 30 2009

signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 or other document authenticating

acknowledging or otherwise adopting the signature that
appears

in typed form within the electronic version of

this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to enherent Corp and will be retained by

enherent Corp and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request



Exhibit 32.2

SECTION 906 CERTIFICATION

In connection with the Annual Report of enherent Corp the Company on Form 10-K for the period

ended December 31 2008 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof the

Report Arunava De VP of Finance of the Company certify pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 1350 adopted

as pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 that

The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13a or 15d of the Securities

Exchange Act of 1934 and

The information contained in the Report fairly presents in all material respects the financial

condition and result of operations of the Company

/s/ ARUNAVA DE

Arunava De

Principal Financial Officer

March 30 2009

signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 or other document authenticating

acknowledging or otherwise adopting the signature that appears in typed form within the electronic version of

this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to enherent Corp and will be retained by

enherent Corp and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request
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